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Statement of the Board of Directors

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge:

—  The annual accounts and the EU-IFRS financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting standards, give a true and fair view of the net assets, the financial position and the
results of Financiére de Tubize.

—  The management report includes a fair review of the development of the business, the financial position
and the results of Financiere de Tubize, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
the Company faces.

Brussels, 25th February 2022
The Board of Directors

Gaétan Hannecart Evelyn du Monceau
Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Ladies and Gentlemen,

In accordance with the legal and statutory requirements, we are honored to report to you on the financial year
2021 and to give an overview of our management of Financiéere de Tubize (the ‘Company’ or ‘Tubize”).

1. Briefing on the evolution of the business, the results and the financial position of the Company, as
well as a description of main risks and uncertainties it is facing

1.1. Activities and mission of the Company

Tubize is the reference shareholder of UCB - Tubize is a mono-holding company whose securities are traded
on Euronext Brussels’ regulated stock market. The Company holds and manages a 35.16% participating interest
in UCB consisting of 68,387,021 shares issued by UCB, a biopharmaceutical company whose securities are also
traded on the regulated stock market.

Creating long-term value - The mission of Tubize is to create long-term value for all its stakeholders , by
supporting, as a stable reference shareholder, the maximization of UCB’s potential and the sustainable growth
of its industrial project. This long-term approach is particularly important to support research, development
and commercialization of products in a sector with very long cycles. Tubize is a committed investor. Its board
of directors monitors, evaluates and influences, through its representatives in the board of directors of UCB, the
significant strategic decisions, the performance and the risk profile of UCB. This strategy of primacy to the long
term and to stability has been beneficial to the shareholders. The table set out below compares the evolution of
the share price of Financiére de Tubize during the periods of 1 and 5 years preceding 31 December 2021 with
the variance under the BEL-20® and the Euro Stoxx 50.

Evolution of the share price

Periods preceding 31 December 2021
1year 5years
Financiere de Tubize 6.5% 42.23%
BEL 20 14.58% 18.44%
Euro Stoxx 50 19.42% 30.48%

1.2. Significant events that occurred during the financial year 2021

Dividends - Tubize has received the dividend from UCB in relation to financial year 2020 (€ 86.5 million) and
has paid to its shareholders its own dividend in relation to financial year 2020 (€ 30.3 million).

The dividend proposed to the annual shareholders meeting on April 29 is €0.75 per share, up 10.3% compared
to last year.

Debt - Bank debt exposure has moved from € 33.5 million at 31 December 2020 to €0.0 at 30 June 2021. In the
second half of the year, the Company drew €20 million from the €350 million of available credit lines in order
to allow, if necessary, the acquisition of additional UCB shares.

Acquisition of UCB Shares - The Company acquired 310,040 UCB shares in 2021, at an average price of €81.37
and for a total amount of €25.23 million, thus bringing its stake in UCB from 35.00% at 31 December 2020 to
35.16% as at 31 December 2021.



1.3. Impact of the Covid 19 crisis

The COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting economic and financial situation had no significant impact on the
Company's activities and its financial statements in 2021. The Company is, in fact, a mono holding company
whose sole investment is a participation in UCB and therefore has no commercial or industrial activity. The
COVID-19 pandemic had no impact on the Company's liquidity or solvency and did not lead to any impairment.
In a period that remains uncertain, the Company is closely monitoring health and economic developments to
assess the possible financial impact of the pandemic on the Company and/or on UCB's results. In this regard,
reference should be made to the content of UCB's 2021 financial report regarding the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on its own results.

1.4. Results

The profit moves from € 81,068k in 2020 to € 83,602k in 2021, thus an increase of € 2,534k or 3.13%.

The condensed profit or loss account looks as follows:

€000 2021 2020
Dividend from UCB 86,458 84,415
Financial income - -
Cost of borrowing (1,271) (1,109)
Other financial expenses (45) 10
General expenses (43) (D
General costs (1,497) (2,248)
Profit before tax 83,602 81,068
Income taxes - B
Net profit 83,602 81,068

The dividend received from UCB in 2021 in relation to financial year 2020 amounts to € 86.46 million (gross
dividend of € 1.27 per share) against € 84.42 million (€ 1.24 per share) for the prior year.

The cost of bank borrowings has moved from € 1,109k in 2020 to € 1,271k in 2021, thus an increase of € 162k.
This increase is mainly related to commitment fees (€1.105k) on the available margin of the two lines of credit
confirmed in September 2020. This increase is partially offset by a decrease in debt charges linked to a
significant reduction in indebtedness following the repayment of all the bank loans which had been taken out
to finance the acquisition of the stake in UCB. The average outstanding debt decreases from €52.0 million in
2020 to €16.0 million in 2021. The average cost of debt decreased from 2019 (1.12%) to 2020 (1.04%) thanks
to favorable market conditions and active management of bank debt. This downward trend is confirmed in
2021 (1.01%).

General expenses decrease from €2,248k in 2020 to €1,497k in 2021. This change is mainly related to the
donation of one million euros granted during the previous financial year to the UCB Community Health Fund
in the context of the crisis. of Covid-19.

Following the application of the participation exemption regime for dividends received, no corporate income
taxes are due. Indeed, the firm benefits from a 100% tax exemption in accordance with the law of December

25th 2017.



The total amount of untaxed reserves on the December 31, 2020 balance sheet was transferred to retained
earnings carried forward to December 31, 2021 in order to align the accounting nature of these reserves with
the tax nature. This transfer was made via a deduction from untaxed reserves in the income statement at the
level of the profit for the year to be allocated.

1.5. Financial position

The condensed balance sheet at 31 December 2021 looks as follows:

€000 2021 2020
Participation in UCB 1,743,221 1,717,992
Current investments and cash at bank and in hand 15,900 983
Other assets 30 50
Total assets 1,759,151 1,719,025
Equity 1,704,731 1,654,513
Bank borrowings 20,000 33,500
Other liabilities 34,420 31,012
Total equity and liabilities 1,759,151 1,719,025

Participation in UCB

The Company acquired 310,040 UCB shares in 2021, thus bringing its participation in the capital of UCB from
35.00% at 31 December 2020 to 35.16% at 31 December 2021. The participation in the capital of UCB is taken
over at its acquisition value for an amount of €1,717,992k at 31 December 2020 compared to €1,743,221 at
31 December 2021, i.e. an average acquisition value of €25.49 per share at 31 December 2021 (€25.24 at 31
December 2020). The market price of the UCB share at 31 December 2021 was €100.35 (€84.48 at 31
December 2020).

Equity

Equity increased from €1,654,513k at 31 December 2020, to €1,704,731k 31 December 2021. This increase
of €50,218k comes from the result for the financial year (€83,602k), partially offset by the dividend to be paid
relating to the 2021 financial year (€ 33,384k).

The market capitalization of Tubize stands at €4,019,488k at 31 December 2021 (44,512,598 shares at €90.3)
compared to €3,676,741k at 31 December 2020 (44,512,598 shares at €82.60).

The solvency ratio (equity as a percentage of total assets) increased from 96.25% as of December 31, 2020, to
96.91% as of December 31, 2021. This ratio remains very strong and is well above the minimum limit of 70%
that the Company has agreed with its bankers.



Bank borrowings

Outstanding bank debt decreased from €33,500k at 31 December 2020, to €20,000k at 31 December 2021.
The evolution of confirmed lines and their uses during the year 2021 is included in note 4.2.6. EU-IFRS
financial statements.

The debt ratio (outstanding bank debt as a percentage of the market value of the stake in UCB) decreased from
0.58% at 31 December 2020, to 0.29% at 31 December 2021. This ratio therefore remains very low and well
below the 30% limit agreed with the bankers.

The Company contracted two loans for a total amount of €350 million, of which € 330 million was not used as
per 31 December 2021.

1.6. Dividend

In May 2021, the Company collected the dividend relating to the financial year 2020 distributed by UCB (€
86,458Kk) and paid its own dividend relating to the financial year 2020 (€ 30,269Kk).

Each year, the Board of Directors takes several elements into consideration when allocating the result that it
submits to the Ordinary General Meeting. The essential elements which influence the amount of the dividend
are the primacy of the long term, the dependence of the Company's results on the dividend distributed by UCB,
financial commitments, compliance with banking covenants and the wish of shareholders to be able to benefit
from a steady pay.

This year, the amount of bank debt having once again fallen sharply, the Board of Directors has decided, for
the 2021 financial year, to propose the distribution of a gross dividend of €0.75 per share, i.e. an increase of
10.3% compared to the previous year. To this end, a total amount of €33,384k has been recognized as a
liability in the annual accounts as at 31 December 2021.

If the general meeting of April 29, 2022 approves the 2021 annual accounts and the proposed allocation of
results, the dividend will be payable from May 5, 2022 to the offices, headquarters and agencies of BNP Paribas
Fortis, against delivery of coupon n°® 17.

Coupon n°17 Dates

Ex-coupon 3 May 2022
Record 4 May 2022
Payment 5 May 2022

1.7. EU-IFRS Financial statements

In order to provide useful and complete information to the market, the Company prepares, in addition to the
annual accounts drawn up in accordance with the Companies and Associations Code and Belgian accounting
law (BE GAAP), financial statements in accordance with international financial reporting standards such as
adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS), with equity accounting for UCB.



The table below compares net income under BE GAAP with net income and other changes in equity under EU-

[FRS.
€000 2021 2020
Profit BE GAAP 83,602 81,068
Elimination of received dividend from UCB (86,458) (84,415)
Share of the profit of UCB 382,627 263,742
Ineffectiveness hedge accounting 164 124
Re-measurement of fair value of derivatives 120 -
Other 35 -
Profit EU-IFRS 380,090 260,519
Cash flow hedge (87) 120
Reclassification adjustments, after tax effect, related to derivatives (120) -
Share of other comprehensive income of UCB 103,049 (90,335)
Comprehensive income EU-IFRS 482,932 170,304
Paid dividend (30,269) (27,598)
Share of the other changes of net assets of UCB 4,035 (5,140)
Impact of changes in the percentage of the participation in UCB (2,773) (8,965)
Changes in EU-IFRS equity 453,925 128,601
EU-IFRS equity beginning of the period 2,792,901 2,664,300
EU-IFRS equity end of the period 3,246,826 2,792,901
Changes in EU-IFRS equity 453,925 128,601




1.8. Key figures for 5 year

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Participation in UCB at 31 /12
Number of UCB shares held by Tubize 68,387,021 | 68,076,981 | 68,076,981 68,076,981 68,076,981
% of total shares issued by UCB 35.16 35 35 35 35
Acquisition value (€ 000) 1,743,221 1,717,992 1,717,992 1,717,992 1,717,992
Equity method value (€ 000) 3,251,834 2,826,125 2,751,238 2,481,939 2,309,844
Fair value (€ 000) 6,862,638 5,751,143 4,826,658 4,853,889 4,505,335
Total assets at 31/12 (€ 000)
BE GAAP 1,759,151 1,719,025 1,718,518 1,721,778 1,719,477
EU-IFRS 3,267,764 2,827,158 2,751,764 2,483,601 2,311,329
Equity at 31/12 (€ 000)
BE GAAP 1,704,731 1,654,513 1,603,714 1,553,451 1,501,402
EU-IFRS 3,246,826 2,792,901 2,664,300 2,339,563 2,115,676
Bank borrowings at 31/12 (€ 000) 20,000 33,500 86,500 142,500 192,000
Balance sheet structure at 31/12 (%)
Solvency 96.91 96.25 93.32 90.22 87.32
Indebtedness 0.29 0.58 1.79 2.94 4.26
Profit (€ 000)
BE GAAP 83,602 81,068 79,984 76,977 72,688
EU-IFRS 380,090 260,519 283,704 285,156 285,934
Gross dividend per share (€) 0.75 0.68 0.62 0.56 0.54
Share price(€)
Minimum 75.4 49.8 55.1 58.2 55.43
Maximum 98.2 89 68 69.9 71.35
Asat31/12 90.3 82.6 63.5 60.7 63.88
Number of shares 44,512,598 | 44,512,598 | 44,512,598 | 44,548,598 | 44,548,598
Market capitalization at 31/12 (€ 000) 4,019,488 3,676,741| 2,826,550( 2,704,100| 2,845,764
Daily average volume at Euronext 6,258 12,061 5,862 6,925 7,121

Brussels (number of shares)




1.9. Main risks and uncertainties

Concentration risk - Tubize’s sole asset consisting of a participation in UCB, the main risk factors and
uncertainties the Company is facing are similar to those of UCB. The board of Tubize is informed about these
risks and the management thereof via its representatives in the board of directors and the audit committee of
UCB.

Price risk - Tubize is exposed to the market risk related to the evolution of the UCB share price. Even though
elements of market imperfection might affect the share price, the board is confident that the evolution of the
share price over a sufficiently long time horizon is a reliable indicator of the performance of the UCB group and
its long-term development.

Cash flow risk - Tubize is exposed to cash flow risk from floating rate bank borrowings.

Liquidity risk - Tubize is exposed to liquidity risk, in particular the risk that the Company might have
difficulties in satisfying its obligations under the bank debt agreements. The board considers that the expected
flux of dividends from UCB will allow the Company to satisfy the committed reimbursements on the existing
borrowings.

Refinancing risk - This risk occurs when Tubize would not be able to ensure the necessary funding at
reasonable conditions to reimburse existing debt. The solvency and indebtedness ratios are calculated twice a
year; they are well within the limits agreed with the banks. The financial conditions of the bank borrowings
depend on the interest rate markets and on the assessment of the credit risk of UCB (the Company has pledged
UCB shares in favor of the banks). The Company closely monitors these two variables.

Counterparty risk - This risk occurs when a bank-counterparty with cash equivalents would not meet its
obligations and Tubize, as a result thereof, would incur a financial loss. The bank-counterparties are Belgian
banks with a rating of ‘upper medium grade’.

Operational risk - This risk stems from inadequate or failing internal processes and systems, human errors,
or external events. The Company has established detailed controls for each significant process. The Company
has no personnel. The responsibility of directors and officers is covered by insurance.

Legal risk - This type of risk is linked to the evolution of the law, which may result in some legal uncertainty or
interpretation difficulties. The board relies regularly on legal advice from an external law firm.

Compliance risk - This risk stems to be an non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The board
relies regularly on external expert advice related to legal, tax and financial matters. The Company has adopted
a Dealing Code that establishes detailed conduct of business rules to avoid insider trading; these rules impose
certain prohibitions as well as preventive measures. The Company has established a conflict-of-interest policy
based on strict ethical rules and a rigorous compliance of all legal and regulatory requirements applicable to
the subject.

Reputational risk - The reputational risk corresponds to the impact a management mistake can have on the
image of the Company. To avoid damage to its image or reputation, the Company has established a corporate
governance system based on proactive risk management, listening to all stakeholders, and transparent
communication of significant issues.

Reference is made to section 1.3. with regard to the risk associated with the Covid-19 crisis.
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2. Postbalance sheet events

No significant event occurred after the end of the 2021 financial year.

3. Circumstances that might have a notable influence on the development of the Company

Future results of the Company will depend on (i) the dividend per share distributed by UCB, (ii) the number of
UCB shares held, and (iii) the cost of the bank borrowings. The EU-IFRS results will, given the equity accounting
of UCB, depend on the UCB outlook, which is commented in the UCB annual report.

4. Research and development

The Company has not pursued any activities in the field of research and development.
The activities of UCB are described in its own board report.

5. Branches

The Company has no branches.

6. Justification of the application of the valuation rules in going concern

This clause solely applies when the balance sheet shows losses carried forward or the income statement shows
a loss for the year during two consecutive years. The Company is not in such position.

7. Other information by virtue of the Company and Associations Code (CAC)

Article 7:96, §1 and §3, CAC - During the accounting year 2021, no instances have occurred whereby a director
or the general manager had a patrimonial interest opposite to a decision or transaction within the authority of
the board of directors or the general manager.

Article 7:97, §1,2,3 and 5, CAC - During the accounting year 2021, no decisions or transactions have taken
place that are in scope of this article that deals with conflicts of interest in the relationship with certain affiliated
entities.

Article 7:203, CAC - This clause about the utilization of authorized capital does not apply, as the Company has
no authorized capital.

Article 7:226, CAC - The Company has not pledged its own shares.
8. Financial instruments

The main financial instruments to which the Company is a party, are bank borrowings and interest rate swaps,
including swaps with deferred start. All the relevant information concerning these instruments is included in
the notes 4.2.6 et 4.2.7 of the EU-IFRS financial statements.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks and its objectives and policies to manage these risks are described
in section 1.9. of this report and in note 4.2.2 of the EU-IFRS financial statements.
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9. Independence and competence with respect to accounting and auditing of at least one member of
the audit committee

Based on the exemption set out in article 7:99 §3, CAC, the functions assigned to the audit committee are
exercised by the board of directors in its entirety. The chairman of the board of directors, NV Vauban
represented by Mr Gaétan Hannecart, is an independent director as defined in article 7:87,§1, CAC and Principle
3.5 of the 2020 Corporate Governance Code. He is competent with respect to accounting and auditing matters.

10. Corporate governance statement

10.1. Reference code

Tubize adopts the 2020 Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) as reference Code. This Code can be consulted
on the website www.corporategovernancecommittee.be. The Company does not apply corporate governance
practices other than those required by the Code and the law.

The Corporate Governance Charter of Tubize, which was adapted to the Code and which took effect on January
1st 2020, has been published on the website www.financiere-tubize.be. It presents the implementation by
Tubize of the recommendations of the Code, taking into account the specificities of the Company, and according
to the ‘comply or explain’ principle.

10.2. Departures from the Code

Given the simplicity of its operating structure and the fact that the Company has only one asset, namely its 35.%
participation in UCB, certain rules of the Code do not appear to be appropriate. It concerns the following items:

—  The Board has not established any specialized committees Under articles 7:99, §3 and 7:100, §3 of the CAC,
respectively, the Company is exempt from the obligation to establish an audit committee and a
remuneration committee. The functions assigned to those committees are exercised by the board in its
entirety. For the same reasons of size, structure and simplicity of operations, the board is of opinion that
the same practice can also be applied with respect to the appointment committee. The derogation from
principles 4.1, 4.3, 4.10, 4.17 and 4.19 of the Code is justified in view of the activity of the Company
(essentially a shareholding in UCB SA), the structure of its shareholding and the simplicity of its mode of
operation (it has no executive director, no staff and its directors are remunerated solely by fixed
emoluments).

—  The directors' remuneration does not include any variable element linked to results or other performance
criteria. Directors also do not benefit from compensation in the form of shares, stock options or an extra-
legal pension scheme. The derogation from principle 7.6 of the Code is justified in view of the specificities
of the Company and in particular the absence of executive directors.

— By derogation from principle 7.9 of the Code, the director in charge of the day-to-day management of the

Company, does not receive variable remuneration, pension or other benefits and does not benefit from
shares, stock options or any other right to acquire shares of the Company.
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10.3. Main characteristics of the internal control and risk management systems

The board of directors has implemented a process and a set of procedures, designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the achievement of strategic objectives (Strategic), effectiveness and efficiency of
operations (Operations), compliance with laws and regulations (Compliance), and the integrity and reliability
of financial information (Reporting). Once a year the board, in its capacity of audit committee, evaluates this
system of internal control.

The system of internal control is tailored to the limited activities of the Company and its simple operating
structure. The internal control measures are selected on the basis of the pertinent legal requirements, the
principles of the relevant Belgian Code on corporate governance, the guidelines of the Corporate Governance
Commission and the five internal control components developed within the international reference framework
COSO (2013).

Five components of internal control

Control Integrity and ethical values; tone at the top supporting internal control; a transparent
environment organizational structure with a clear assignment of authority and responsibility

Risk assessment | Identifying and assessing risks to the achievement of the Company’s SOCR objectives

Control activities | Establishing policies and procedures to mitigate these risks

Information and | Implementation of information and communication systems to support and monitor
communication the achievement of the objectives

Monitoring Monitoring and regular evaluation of the implemented measures

In the description of its procedures of internal control and risk management, the Company distinguishes general
procedures, specific procedures regarding risk management and specific procedures regarding the process of
financial reporting.

General procedures

Integrity and ethical values are fundamental in conducting business. They are embedded in the organization
through several standards and procedures (corporate governance, remuneration policy, dealing code, conflict
of interests, social responsibility, gender diversity, ...).

The mission, the objectives and the strategy of the Company are clearly defined.

A clear governance structure, based on the requirements of the CAC and the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code relevant to the Company, has been implemented. The effective and efficient functioning of the
board of directors is supported by (i) a set of internal regulations specifying the responsibilities of the board
and the directors, the composition of the board, the nomination of the directors, the remuneration of the
directors, and the general principles of the organization and functioning of the board, (ii) an annual cycle of
agenda items for the board meetings, (iii) a dedicated procedure for the training of the directors, and (iv)
detailed profiles for the functions of (independent) director and general manager. The general manager is
responsible for the day-to-day management, the secretariat of the board of directors and the general meeting,
and the function of compliance officer.

Responsibilities are clearly defined based on a segregation between the responsibilities of the board of directors
and those of the general manager, and detailed rules with respect to signature authorities, special authorities
and representation of the Company.

13



A set of internal procedures ensures compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and best practices.

In the annual budget approved by the board of directors, the cost of the resources to deploy a system of internal
control are taken into account as an essential component of the run cost of the Company.

Security measures are implemented to ensure the continuity and the reliability of electronic information
systems; the data bases of the day-to-day management are backed up on an hourly basis. The data is encrypted
locally during the transfer to the server (SSL-1024) and cannot be read without a decrypting key (AES-256).
The data is stored-encrypt on the server (AES-256). Moreover, the physical protection of datacenters is ensured
according to the standards state of art against fire, intrusions and water damage...

External information flows via the website and internal information flows via the portal of the board of
directors, are, with the support of specialized external organizations, set up in conformity with international
standards of security and confidentiality (strictly coded access to the production environment, secured hosting
sites and systems, ...). Compliance with these standards is confirmed by external audits and by vulnerability
analyses and intrusion tests by external organizations.

Concerning the follow up of its participation in UCB - its sole asset - Tubize positions itself as a committed
investor. Its board of directors monitors, evaluates and influences, via its representatives on the board of
directors of UCB, the significant strategic decisions, the performance and the risk profile of UCB.

The parameters for managing own funds and debt as well as compliance with financial covenants are strictly
adhered to.

Specific procedures regarding risk management

The section 1.9. of the present report shows the risks to which the Company may be exposed and the way to
manage these risks.

Specific procedures regarding the financial reporting process

The content of the financial information is clearly defined. The annual financial report consists of (i) the annual
accounts prepared in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium (BE GAAP),
(ii) the accounts prepared in accordance with the international financial reporting standards adopted by the
European Union (EU-IFRS), (iii) the report of the board of directors, and (iv) a statement of the board of
directors on the true and fair view of the annual accounts and the EU-IFRS accounts and on the fair review of
the board report. The half-year financial report consists of (i) the condensed interim BE GAAP accounts, (ii) the
condensed interim accounts in accordance with IAS 34 on interim financial reporting, (iii) the interim report of
the board of directors, and (iv) a statement of the board of directors on the true and fair view of the condensed
interim accounts.

The bookkeeping is held by an external accountant accredited by the ITAA, who uses a detailed procedures
manual to ensure ongoing compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements related to bookkeeping of
enterprises (Economic Code, Book III, Title 3, Chapter 2 and its implementing royal decrees as well as the related
advices of the “Commission des Normes Comptables”). The accounting software used is Exact Online. The
bookkeeping data processed in this software are safeguarded on professional certified servers. Moreover, most
of the documents in possession of the accountant are digitalized and are safeguarded on certified servers of a
professional host of which the reliability of its internal control system has been confirmed by an audit. A
rigorous system has been put in place to back-up the data on the server.
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The BE GAAP annual accounts are prepared by an accountant mandated by the general manager on the basis of
the scheme made available by the National Bank of Belgium. The annual accounts are prepared on the basis of
the trial balance and based on non-accounting information necessary to complete the notes to the annual
accounts. After their approval by the shareholders during the annual general meeting, the annual accounts are
filed in XBRL format via the SILVERFIN software at the National Bank of Belgium. This software contains
consistency checks.

In accordance with equity accounting of UCB, the EU-IFRS accounts are established by an accountant mandated
by the general manager. Concerning the notes, the accountant relies on disclosure checklists of audit firms. The
EU-IFRS accounts are influenced by the results of UCB. The latter has adopted a formal procedure of internal
control over the process of financial reporting, called the “Transparency Directive Procedure” (for more
information on this procedure, see the board report of UCB). The board of Tubize monitors this procedure via
its representatives in the board of directors and the audit committee of UCB.

Apart from the organizational measures, there are specific procedures such as analytical review by the general
manager/accountant of the balance sheet and profit & loss account, the preparation of a closing file with
detailed justification of balances, the reconciliation of accounts with external counterparties, the use of
disclosure checklists to ensure compliance with accounting standards, the follow-up of the auditor’s
recommendations, etc.

The delegated regulation (EU) 2018/815 of the European Commission of December 17, 2018 provides that the
consolidated financial statements (IFRS) of companies whose securities are admitted to trading on a regulated
market, must be marked in accordance with ESEF requirements ( “European Single Electronic Format”) using
iXBRL tags. This delegated regulation is applicable in Belgium to the annual financial reports on the annual
accounts for the financial years starting on January 1, 2021 or after this date.

To meet ESEF requirements, the Company has invested in a reporting tool, the IRIS CARBON Disclosures
Management Tool, and will publish its 2021 annual financial report in the XHTML format. The Company is not
required to file consolidated financial statements. As a result, its obligation is limited to filing the annual
financial report without tags. The ESEF report is drawn up via IRIS CARBON and published on the STORI
platform made available for this purpose by the FSMA. The ESEF report is drawn up and published by a
chartered accountant appointed by the general manager.

10.4. Additional information requested by the Royal Decree dd. 14 November 2017

The following information is required by the aforementioned Royal Decree insofar as it may, where applicable,
have an impact on the Company in the event of the launch of a take-over bid.

10.4.1. Shareholders structure

The shareholders structure of Tubize as it results from (i) the annual notification sent in accordance with article
74, §8 of the law of 1 April 2007 concerning a take-over bid (ii) notifications received by the Company in
accordance with the law of 2 May 2007 concerning the publication of significant participations, and (iii)
notifications executed in accordance with the market abuse regulation by the directors of the Company or by
persons closely related to them, and taken into account the breakdown of the voting rights between those held
in concert and those held outside concert, can be presented as follows at 31 December 2021:
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In concert Outside concert Total

Number % Number % Number %

FEJ SRL 8,525,014 | 19.15% 1,988,800 4.47% ] 10,513,814 23.62%
Daniel Janssen 5,881,677 13.21% - - 5,881,677 13.21%
Altai Invest SA 4,969,795 | 11.16% 26,468 0.06% 4,996,263 11.22%
Barnfin SA 3,903,835 8.77% - - 3,903,835 8.77%
Jean van Rijckevorsel 11,7441 0.03% - - 11,744 0.03%
Total voti ights held by th

a‘)’n‘c’e;’f Mg rignts neld by the | 23,292,065 | 52.33% | 2,015,268| 4.53% | 25307,333| 56.85%
Other shareholders - -1 19,205,265| 43.15% | 19,205,265 43.15%
Total voting rights 23,292,065 | 52.33% | 21,220,533 | 47.67% | 44,512,598 | 100.00%

The FE] SRL, Daniel Janssen, the Altai Invest SA (controlled by Evelyn du Monceau), Barnfin SA (controlled by
Bridget van Rijckevorsel) and Jean van Rijckevorsel act in concert. For a description of the terms of the concert,
see section 10.4.7. here after.

10.4.2. Structure of the capital

The capital is represented by 44,512,598 ordinary shares. Each share gives the same rights to dividends and
entitlement to one vote at the general shareholders meeting.

10.4.3. Restrictions to the transfer of shares

No restrictions apply to the transfer of shares other than those imposed by law or those that might result from
shareholders agreements (see section 10.4.7.).

10.4.4. Special control rights

There are no instruments with special control rights.

10.4.5. Control mechanisms in a system of shareholdings by the personnel

No system of shareholdings by the personnel is in place.

10.4.6. Restrictions to the exercise of voting rights

There are no restrictions, other than legal, to the exercise of voting rights.

To attend or be represented at the general meeting and exercise her/his voting right, a shareholder must have
carried out the accounting registration of his/her shares no later than the fourteenth day before the general
meeting at midnight Belgian time (either for the ordinary general meeting to be held on the Friday, 29 of April
2022; Friday, 15 April 2022, the “Registration Date”), either by registering them in the Company’s register of
nominative shares, or by registering them in the accounts of a licensed account holder or a settlement
institution, the number of shares held on the day of the meeting being disregarded.
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The shareholder must also inform the Company of her/his desire to attend the general meeting. A holder of
nominative shares should send to the Company the signed original of the attendance notice, this form being
appended to the convening notice. A holder of dematerialized shares should send to the Company an attestation,
issued by the licensed account holder or by the settlement institution, certifying the number of shares that are
registered in the accounts of the account holder or settlement institution on the name of the shareholder at the
Registration Date and for which the shareholder has declared he/she wants to participate in the general
meeting. The attendance notice or the attestation should reach the Company, at its registered seat, no later than
six days before the date of the general meeting (being Saturday 23 April 2022 for the ordinary general meeting
of 2022).

10.4.7. Agreements between shareholders

The shareholders identified in section 10.4.1. above, act in concert. The terms of the concert are laid down in a
shareholders agreement. The key elements of this agreement can be summarized as follows:

—  The objective of the concert is to ensure, through Financiere de Tubize, the stability of the shareholder
structure of UCB in view of the long-term industrial development of the latter. In this perspective, it aims
at preserving the predominance of the family shareholder structure of Financiere de Tubize.

—  The parties to the concert consult with each other about the decisions to be taken at the general meeting
of Tubize, and try, to the extent possible, to reach a consensus. They ensure that they are properly
represented in the board of directors of Financiere de Tubize. Within this board and through their
representatives at the board of directors of UCB, they consult with each other about the significant strategic
decisions concerning UCB, and try, to the extent possible, to reach a consensus.

—  The parties inform each other prior to any project of significant acquisition or sale of shares of Financiere
de Tubize; pre-emption rights and tag along are also in place within the family.

10.4.8. Rules applicable to the appointment and replacement of members of the board of directors

The board of directors submits to the general shareholders meeting the appointments or renewals of
directorships that it proposes. The shareholders may also propose candidates.

Proposals for appointment shall specify the term proposed for the mandate and indicate the useful information
on the professional qualifications of the candidate, as well as a list of functions that the proposed director
already exercises.

The general shareholders meeting decides on the proposals by a majority of the votes cast.

Directors are appointed by the general shareholders meeting for a term of 4 years. They are re-eligible. The
expiring mandates come to an end after the ordinary general shareholders meeting, which has not renewed
them.

In the event of a vacancy on the board, the directors may fill the vacancy temporarily. The general shareholders
meeting will at its next meeting conduct a definitive election.

An age limit has been set at the date of the ordinary general meeting following the seventy-fifth anniversary of
a member. In such a case, the person concerned resigns from his/her mandate.
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10.4.9. Rules applicable to the modification of the articles of association

Only the general meeting of shareholders can amend the articles of association.

The general meeting can only deliberate on amendments of the articles of association if the purpose of the
proposed amendments is explicitly mentioned in the convening notice and if those who attend the meeting
represent at least half of the capital. If the latter condition is not met, a new meeting can validly deliberate
irrespective of the portion of capital represented.

An amendment requires a 3/4th majority of the votes, except in those cases where the law requires stricter
majority rules.

10.4.10. Powers of the board of directors

The board of directors is the management body of the Company. It is competent to decide on all matters that
the law or the articles of association do not expressly entrust to the general shareholders meeting.

It is responsible for the general strategy of the Company and the implementation thereof.

Within the context of its mission, the tasks of the board of directors include but are not limited to:

—  Defining the strategic objectives and implementing structures enabling their achievement

—  Convenes and proposes the agendas for the ordinary and extraordinary general meetings of shareholders

—  Proposes candidates for election as directors, including independents, for approval by the general meeting
of shareholders

—  Establishing the accounts and proposing the appropriation of the result

—  Approving investments

—  Prepares and closes the financial statements

—  Ensuring the timely publication of the financial statements and other significant financial or non-financial
information communicated to the shareholders and to the general public

—  Ensuring that all human, IT and financial resources are in place to enable the Company to achieve its
objectives

—  Implement a system of internal control and risk management

—  Assess the performance of the general manager

—  Supervise the work of the statutory auditor

—  Establishes the company's communication policy and supervises all external communication channels

—  Determines the governance structure of the company (and reassesses it every 5 years)

—  Adopts the remuneration policy and submits it to the general meeting

—  Ensures the proper implementation of the Company's corporate governance rules based on the principles
of the Code.

The board of directors allocates adequate resources to exercise its functions.

The board is jointly responsible towards the Company for the good execution of its authorities.
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The general shareholders meeting of 25 April 2018 has authorized the board of directors to acquire shares of
the Company, under the conditions set out in the law, for a period of five years from the said general meeting.
The par value of the purchased shares may not exceed 20% of the subscribed capital. The acquisitions can be
realized at a price between € 1 and € 200. Moreover, the general shareholders meeting of 27 April 2019 has
authorized the board of directors, for a period of three years from the date of the publication of the amendment
of the articles of association by the before mentioned general meeting, to acquire shares of the Company in
order to avoid a serious and imminent damage to the Company.

10.4.11. Significant agreements that might be impacted by a takeover bid

The Company is part to credit agreement with BNP Paribas Fortis SA, for an amount of €250 million. The general
credit opening conditions governing this agreement include a clause conferring the right to BNP Paribas Fortis
SA to suspend or terminate, with immediate effect and without formal notice, entirely or partly, the credit
facilities or one of its forms of utilization, for the utilized part as well as for the non-utilized part, all this in case
of substantial modifications of Tubize shareholders structure which might have an impact on the composition
of the governing bodies (as well as on the persons responsible for the day-to-day management) or on the overall
risk assessment by the bank.

The Company is also part to a credit agreement with Belfius Bank SA, for an amount of € 100 million. The Credit
Regulation of June 2012 which applies to this agreement includes a clause which confers the right to Belfius
Bank SA to terminate or suspend, in whole or in part, the credit facility without formal notice or legal recourse
prior, with immediate effect on the date of dispatch of the letter notifying denunciation or suspension, in the
event of a change in the administration of Tubize, or if one of the active or jointly liable members, or if one of
the majority shareholders withdraws or dies.

10.4.12. Indemnities in case of a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Company and its directors or officers that would, as a result of a takeover
bid, trigger indemnities to directors or officers resigning or being forced to quit their functions without any
valid reason. The Company has no personnel.

10.5. Composition and functioning of the board of Directors

10.5.1. Composition

The general shareholders meeting fixes the number of directors. According to the articles of association, the
board of directors consists of at least three members.

Today the board consists of eleven members (eight representatives of the reference shareholders and three

independent directors).
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Name Fonction Independent Executive Mandate
Vauban NV represented by Gaétan Hannecart Chairman Yes No 2021-25
é:r?ol\gzrrl:t%zrerzr;t BV represented by Annick Member Yes No 2019-23
Praksis BV represented by Bruno Holthof Member Yes No 2021-25
Eric Cornut Member No No 2021-22
Nikita SRL represented Cyril Janssen Member No No 2021-25
Charles-Antoine Janssen Member No No 2019-23
Edouard Janssen Member No No 2021-25
Evelyn du Monceau Member No No 2019-23
Fiona de Hemptinne Member No No 2018-22
Cédric van Rijckevorsel Member No No 2021-25
Cynthia Favre d'Echallens Member No No 2018-22

Mr. Marc Speeckaert tendered his resignation effective May 29, 2021 and Mr. Eric Cornut was co-opted by the
Board of Directors on that date. The confirmation of his appointment as director will be proposed for a period
of 4 years expiring at the ordinary general meeting of 2026.

The mandate of Mrs. Cynthia Favre d'Echallens will expire at the ordinary general meeting of April 29, 2022,
and her renewal will be proposed to said meeting.

The mandate of Mrs. Fiona de Hemptinne will expire at the ordinary general meeting of April 29, 2022. The
appointment of the company Biofina SRL represented by Mrs. Fiona de Hemptinne will be proposed as director
for a period of 4 years expiring on ordinary general meeting of 2026.

Mr. Edouard Janssen presented his resignation with effect at the ordinary general meeting of April 29, 2022 and
the appointment of the company E] Management SRL represented by Mr. Edouard Janssen, will be proposed as
independent director for a period of 4 years expiring on the ordinary general meeting of 2026.

10.5.2. Functioning

The board of directors appoints a chairman from among its members. The chairman coordinates the activities
of the board and ensures its proper functioning. He ensures in particular that the best practices of corporate
governance apply to the relations between the shareholders, the board of directors and the general manager
responsible for the day-to-day management.

The role of company secretary is entrusted to the general manager. The company secretary ensures, under the
leadership of the chairman, good information flow within the board of directors. He facilitates the training of
board members. Directors can individually call upon the secretary. The company secretary regularly reports to
the board, under the leadership of the chairman, on how board procedures, rules and regulations are complied
with.

The board of directors meets when it is convened by the chairman or by the director replacing him, as often as
the interests of the Company so require. It must in addition be convened when at least two directors so request.
Convening is done by a written invitation to each of the directors, eight days before the meeting, except in case
of urgency, and including the agenda. The board of directors can validly meet without convening if all directors
are present or represented and have agreed on the agenda.
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The board of directors meets at least three times a year. In 2021 the board has met nine times. The individual
attendance rates of the directors is summarized in the table hereafter:

Name Attendance

Vauban NV represented by Gaétan Hannecart 100%
Bruno Holthof until 30/04/2021 100%
Praksis BV represented by Bruno Holthof as from 30/04 /2021 100%
AVO Management BV represented by Annick van Overstraeten 100%
Eric Cornut as from 29/05/2021 100%
Cyril Janssen until 30/04/2021 100%
Nikita SRL, represented by Cyril Janssen as from 30/04/2021 89%
Charles-Antoines Janssen 100%
Evelyn du Monceau 67%
Nicolas Janssen 67%
Edouard Janssen as from 30/04/2021 88%
Fiona de Hemptinne 100%
Cédric van Rijckevorsel 89%
Cynthia Favre d'Echallens 89%

Amongst the key agenda items of the board meetings during the accounting year 2021, one could mention: the
follow up on the performance of UCB, the financial reports (semester and annual), the preparation of the
ordinary general meeting of 2021, the 2022 budget, several aspects of the functioning of the board (search of a
new independent director, valuation, training), the negotiation of new credit lines and the management of own
funds and bank debt.

The chairman of the board of directors draws up the agenda of the meetings. He ensures that the directors
receive, prior to the meetings and in good time, the same precise and detailed information.

The meetings of the board of directors are chaired by the chairman or by the director replacing him.

The board may validly decide only if half of the members are present or represented. The quorum of presence
is calculated on the basis of the number of directors taking part in the voting, without taking into account those
who should withdraw from the deliberation pursuant to the Company and Associations Code.

Each director may, by simple letter or proxy, delegate another board member the power to represent him/her.
However, no director may have more than two votes, including her/his own vote.

Resolutions are adopted by a majority of votes. In the event of a tie, the chairman of the meeting has the casting
vote.

In cases where it is permitted by law, which must remain exceptional and must be duly justified by urgency and
the interests of the Company, decisions of the board of directors may be taken by the unanimous written consent
of the directors.

The deliberations of the board of directors are documented in minutes that are kept in a special register at the
seat of the Company. These minutes are signed by at least the majority of the members who have taken part in
the deliberations.
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During the accounting year 2021, due to health circumstances, all but one of the meetings were held virtually.

During the financial year, there were no transactions or contractual relations between, on the one hand, the
directors and/or the manager and, on the other hand, the Company, other than those resulting from their quality
as director or director delegated to day-to-day management.

The Board of Directors conducted an assessment exercise for which the assistance of an independent third party
was requested.

10.6. Gender diversity

Since the Company has a very simple structure and has no staff it put in place a diversity policy which essentially
concerns the composition of its board of directors. This policy implies that several elements must be taken into
account, such as the compliance with legal requirements and the Code, but also the reference shareholders
representation, the complementarity of expertise and skills, the diversity of functions, the age, the transition
from one generation to another, the gender, the independence, the motivation, the personal qualities, the
availability, etc.

Article 7:86 §1 of the CAC, requires minimum one third of the board members to have a gender that is different
from that of the other members. The required minimum number is rounded to the nearest whole number. The
composition of the board with 7 male and 3 female members complies with the legal requirements.

Furthermore, Tubize is a company holding a stable stake in UCB participates in the Diversity Policy of UCB’s
Board of Directors.

10.7. Remuneration report 2021

10.7.1. Generalities

Under Article 7: 100, §4 of the CSA, Tubize is exempt from the obligation to establish a remuneration committee.
The functions attributed to the remuneration committee are performed by the board of directors as a whole. As
such, the Board set, in accordance with the decision of the 2017 Ordinary General Meeting, the remuneration of
the directors and of the director for day-to-day management for the 2021 financial year.

10.7.2. Policy

The ordinary general meeting of 26 April 2017 has indeed fixed from the accounting year 2017 onwards, and
for an indefinite period, the remuneration to € 30,000 per year and per director and has also granted an
attendance fee of € 1,000 per meeting (general meeting included) for each director. The fixed fee of the
chairman of the board of directors is twice the fee of a director. He receives the same attendance fee as a
director.

These amounts are exclusive of possible VAT and employer social security contributions, which will be borne
by Tubize.

The services agreement between the Company and the general manager provides exclusively for a
remuneration based on the number of hours performed.
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10.7.3. Remuneration and other benefits granted to the directors in 2021

In accordance with the decision taken by the ordinary general meeting of 2017, the fixed remuneration for the
directors amounts to €30,000 per person for the accounting year 2021 . The fixed remuneration of the chairman
of the board amounts to €60,000.

The following attendance fees were paid to each director during the 2021 financial year (€ 1,000 per meeting,
the general meeting counting for one meeting).

Name Attendance
Vauban NV represented by Gaétan Hannecart 10,000
Bruno Holthof until 30/04/2021 2,000
Praksis BV represented by Bruno Holthof as from 30/04/2021 8,000
Marc Speeckaert (Until 29/05/2021) 4,000
Eric Cornut as from 29/05/2021 6,000
Cyril Janssen until 30/04/2021 2,000
Nikita SRL, represented by Cyril Janssen as from 30/04/2021 7,000
Charles-Antoine Janssen 10,000
Nicolas Janssen 3,000
Edouard Janssen 7,000
Evelyn du Monceau 6,000
Fiona de Hemptinne 11,000
Cédric van Rijckevorsel 10,000
Cynthia Favre d'Echallens 9,000
AVO Management BV represented by Annick van Overstraeten 10,000

10.7.4. Remuneration and other benefits granted to the general manager in 2021

The mandate of the general manager exercised by the company Other Look (OL2EF) SRL whose head office is
Chaussée de Tervuren 111 in 1160 Auderghem represented by Anne Sophie Pijcke came to an end as per 30
April 2021. The paid fees during the 2021 financial year amounted to € 37,000.

The mandate of general manager is exercised by the company ENRE SRL whose head office is Place Obert de
Thieusies, 1 in 7830 Thoricourt, represented by Eric Nys since the 30th April 2021.

The fees granted to the SRL ENRE for the 2021 financial year amounted to €139,000 (excluding VAT).

The director's compensation consists of a fixed compensation of €1,000 (excluding VAT) per day worked plus
an annual bonus of €40,000 (excluding VAT) allocated according to the achievement of objectives set by mutual
agreement with the Chairman of the Board of Directors at the beginning of each accounting year.

The director does not receive a pension or other benefits and does not benefit from shares, stock options or any
other right to acquire Tubize shares.

The service provision agreement governing the relationship between the Company and the director provides
that each of the parties may terminate it by notifying the other party of three months' notice starting three
working days from the date of the notification. notice by registered letter. No compensation is provided for,
according the agreement.
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10.7.5. Remuneration and other benefits granted to other directors or executives

As the general manager is the only executive of the Company, this information is not applicable.

Brussels, the 25th of February 2022
The Board of Directors

Gaétan Hannecart Evelyn du Monceau
Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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F-cap 2 . . . .
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F-cap 2.1 List of the directors, business managers and auditors 27
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The 31 December 2021 annual accounts of Financiére de Tubize have been established by a resolution of
the board of directors of 25 February 2022 and will be submitted for approval by the general shareholders
meeting of 29 April 2022.
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Vauban NV Chairman of the hoard of directors

Nr: BE 0838.114.246 IV0R021 - 25042025

Rue Ducale 47-4% | 1000 Brussels. Belgium

Represented by:

Gaéfan Hannecart
Meirstraat 7, 3850 Nevele, Belgium

Figna De Hempfinne Direcfor
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A V.0 - Management Directar
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Represented by

Annick Van Overstraeten
Avenue Franklin Hoosevelt 210, 1050 lxelies, Belgium

Evelyn du Monceau Director
Avenue des Fleurs 14 1150 Woluwe-Saint-Fierre, Belgium 240472079 - 260472023
Praksis BV Direcfor
Nr.: BE (M31.476.206 3004720219 - 2504420235
Paotvliefigan & , 2600 Berchem (Antwerp), Belgium
Represented by:

Bruno Holthof

Potebetlaan 6 2600 Berchem [Anfwerpj. Belgium
Cynfhia Favre o Echallens Directar
Rue d'Ditignies T44 , 1380 Lasne, Beigium 25042018 - 270402022
Charles-Anfoine Janssen Director
Chaussee de Bruselles 110, 1310 La Hulpe, Belgium 240452019 - 2670472023
Nikita SRL Direcfor
Nr.: BE (473.566.767 3004720219 - 250420235
Rue des Mélézes 29, 1050 ixelles, Beigium
Represenfed by

Cyrd Janssen
Fiure des Mélézes 29, 1050 lxefles. Belgium

Cyrll Janssen Director
Fue des Maiézes 29, 1050 ixefes, Baigium 24042019 - 30042029
Nicolas Janssen Director
Avenue Emest Sotvay 110, 1310 La Hulpe, Belgium 25042018 - 307042021
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Gédric Van Rickevorsel
Chipsfead Sfreat 37 , SWE 35R London, Uned Kingdom

Mare Speeckaert
Avenue Albert 201 | 1150 Foresf, Belgium

Bruno Holthaf
Honeybolom Lane, Dry Sandford, Abingdon 78a | OX13 & BX Owxfordshire, United
Kingdom

Edouand Janssen
Ghaussée de Bruxelles 108, 1310 La Hulpe, Belgium

Enc Gomut
Bleicherweg 4 | 4102 Binningen, Switzerdang

BDO REVISEUR DENTREPRISES S.RL
Nr.. BE 0431.088.259

Da Vincitaan 3, 1330 Zavenfern. Belgium
Membership nr: IRE BOO023

Represented by:
GChristaphe Gofson

FRue Waucomant 31, 4651 Baftice, Baigium
Membership nr.: IRE AD2033

Directar
20042021 - 25704/2025

Directar
25042018 - 29032021

Director
220442020 - 30v04/2021
Director
300442021 - 23042025

Directar
29052021 - 29042022

Auditor
2000472021 - 267042024

Firsf - F-eap2029 - 3735
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Ine. | BEO403.216429

F-cap 2.2

DECLARATION REGARDING A COMPLIMENTARY REVIEW OR CORRECTION ASSIGNMENT

The managing board declares that no audit or comecton assignment has been given to a person who was not authorised to do so by
law, pursuant to art. 34 and 37 of the law of 22th April 18988 concerning sccounting and tax professions.

The annual accounts XK | were not* audited or comected by an extemal accountant or by a company audstor who is not the

siatutory auditor.

[f affirmative, mention hereafter: surname, first names, profession and address of each external accountant or company auditor and

his membership number with his Institute as well as the nature of his assignment:

A Bookkeeping of the enterprise **,

B. Preparing the annual accounts **,
C. Auditng the annual accounts andior
D. Caomecting the annual accounts.

[f the tasks mentioned under A. or B. are executed by certfied accountants or certfied bookkeepers - tax specialists, you can mention
hereafier. sumame, frst names, profession and address of each cerified accountant or cerified bookkesper - tax specialist and
his/her affiliation number with the Institute of Accounting Professional and Tax Experts and the nature of hisiher assignment

Sumame, first names, profession and address

Afflation rumber

Mature of the
ignmenl
A, B. C andior O

Sirike oul whal is not applicable
** Optional infarmation

First - Feap2021 - 4/35
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[ wr. | BEmq03216428

F-cap 3.1

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

BALANCE SHEET AFTER APPROPRIATION

Dhscl.

ASSETS

FOrMation BXPBISES ..o BT

ngihle i s I i = TSR  : |
Land and buildings -.....
Plant, machinery and equiprment
Fuemiture and wehicles ...
Leasing and similar rights -.
Assats wnder construction anl:l ad'uance- paymenls

B4BE1
8.15

Financial fixed assels - i
Affiliated entenprises ...
Participating interests ...........-
Amounts recenvable ... ...
Enterprises linked by participating interests
Participating |nbeq'es|3
Cther financial asseds ..
Chares oceeeemeeen
Amounts renewahle and cash guaiantees

Preriod

Preceding pariad

1.743.221.045. 23

1.743.221.043,25

1.743.221.049. 23

1.717.992.281 77

1.717.392.381.77
1.717.332.381,77

First - Freap2021 - 5735
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[ wr. | BEo#o3z16423

F-cap 3.1

Dhiscl.

Amounts receivable after more than one year ...
Trade debbors .. T N G o A

Orther armounts renewahle L

Stocks and contracts in progress ...
R,aw materials and consumables
\Wogik i progress e
Finashed goods ...
Goods purl:#\aﬁed for TEE|E s
Immaovable property intended for sale .
Adlﬂme 1101 | L RO e

Amounts receivable within one year
Trade debtors -
Other armounts I'EEE'UEI:HE -

Current investments ... . B5.14.8

Other investments .-

Cash at bank and in hamd ..o

Deferred charges and accrued income ... B8

Codas

Period

Preceding period

2958

15.829.507.68

1.032.553.87

1.360. 54

1.360.54

15.899.633,58
28.543,26

983.120,9%

49,432 88

1.7559.150.556 93

1.715.024.535 64

First - F-cap2021 -6/ 35
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[ wr. | BEog03216429

F-cap 3.2

Discl.

EGILHTY AND LIABILITIES

Uncalled capitat * --
Outside the capital ...
Share premium aceount -

Revaluation SUrplusSes .

Reserves not available ...
Legal FESEME i s
Resemves statutoniy not available
Aquisition of own shares ...
Financial support ...

Untaxed reserves

Ayvadabde reserves ... e

Accumulated profits (losses) ... [+M{-}
Investment grants. ...

Advance to associates on the sharing out of the assets B
PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED TAKES ool

Provisions for liabilities and charges ... ...
Pensions and similar obBgations ..ol
L S S
Magor repairs and maintenance ..
Enwironmental obligations ...
Cither liabilities and changes ...

4 Amoun o subsirac of o Eseed capilal
5 Amount i Sulrsirect bom S othar part of the ety

Pesicd

Precading period

19
16

6T
160
181
1682
L]
16415

168

1.704. 731.256 38

236.224.992.36
235.000.000,00
235.000.000,00
1.224.992 36
1.224.992 35

1.379.128.707.51
23955590 60
22.500.000,00
455,590 60

135517411691

89.376.558,11

1B 513434 37

236.224.992.36
235.000.000,00
235.000,000,00
1.224.992.36
1.224.992 35

1,372 637.176.95
23.955.550.60
23.500,000.00
455.590 60

3B.367 465 43
1310 174 116,91

45.591.264.95

First - Feap2021 - 7735
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[ Wr. | BED403.216.428

F-cap 3.2

Dizcl.

Amounts payable after more than one year oo, B3
Financial debis . NS i
Subordinated I|:|an5 e
Unsubardinated dehenu'es g i B
Leasing and other simiar ubllgab-nns
Credit institutions
Other loans .-
Trade debts .
Supphers. R e Bl e
Bills of exchange payal:lle
Advances received on contracts in progress - Y
Other armounts payable .

Amounts payable within one year - &9
Camrent potion of amounts pa}lahle afbe-r rmore man ong year
faling due within one year ._.........

Financial debis -
Credit l'rsti'n.rliwﬁ
Other loans .-

Trade debts .
Supphers. S,
Bills of exchange pa}lahle

Advances recened on contracts in progress -

Taxes, remuneration and social security ...
Taxes . i L P R b o R e L £ A
Remunem‘bm and social EE'CIJI'II.}'

Cthver amecamnits: par.ab}e S e e e e, e

Accruals and deferred income -, B8

€9

Period

Preocading period

174

1751

1784
42148

a2
43
45048

a4
44044
441
45

a5
4503
45414
475448

4333

441325735

M 30203572

20.000.000.00

266.725.59
466.729,59

25.000,16
33 810.295.97

117.222.23

EL011.501.37

148.621,00
148.621,00

20,698,088 61
164.751,76

106449

1.755.150.256,33

1.715.024.935 64

First - Fcap2021 - 8735
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Nr_ | BE 0403216429 oA
| | ap

INCOME STATEMENT

Discl. | Codes Penod Preceding penod

TUEMOVET ....ciiceie. s, B0 | 70

Stocks ofﬁnlshed gnuds and w1:»rk and mnt:aﬁs in prugress
Increase idecrgasej AR R o Pty [+1I'1 :l ™
Dthe-.r operating innmne e B0 | T4
Mon-recurring operating income .o, BT | TEA

Dperafing ::ha'rge-s St s e S e BOiEAA 1.940.900. 90 2.248.852,38
F'ur-:ﬂ\arses T R T L e S EODE
Stocks: del:,:'e\ase {mease? A T

Benices and other goods ... o
Remuneraticn, social mmnw eosts and pensions ... (+-) 810 | B2
Depreciation of and other amounts written off formation
expenses, intangible and tangible fed assets . : B30 LESRRERE R PR E AT  Sk
Armounts written off stocks, contracts in progress and tade
debtors: Appropriations {write-backs) - S{#-) 810 | B3t
Provisions for liabilites and marg-e»s Appmpnm {u:ses
and write-backs) ... ¥ [+)-) 10 | B3sE i
Other operating chafges - .. 810 | 6404 J6.518,04 BEB, 00
Operating charges camed to assefs as resuudunng cn515{ :. B49 PR O R L s T
Mon-recurring cperating charges - NSRS : 1, - I - 6.536.31 [

Operating profit (1055) ..o W il -1.540.100.30 -£.248.855, 38

First - F-cap20271-3735



[ ur. | BED#0s21642%

F-cap 4

Disci.

Financial income - e P N e A
Recurring financiad income ..o
Income from financial fixed assets -
Imcome from current assebs ...
Oithver financial MCome - <iceimeeimeeeciiin
Mon-recurring financial income ...

Financial charges ...
Recurring financial l:ha;ges
Debt charges ...
Amounts written off current assEts eme-p'tst-a-dl.s contracis
in progress and trade debtors: apq:-ropnatuns [write-backs)

g T

Dthet fma:rsnlal charges, i
Mon-recurring financial n!rages SRR |-

Gain {loss) for the period before taxes ... [+)0-)

Transfer to defermed BREES - - e
[+1u::| 813

Income t@Xes -oeeoee-
Tames ..

P.J:Ijusu'rtemofmme tanes and wnte-bank of tax provisions
Gain {loss) of the period ... (E#M)
Transfer from untaxed FESBIVES ...

Transfer to untaed rESEMVES - et

Gain {loss) of the period available for appropriation -+~

Pericd

Preoading period

E&D

ETITT
BT
w7

-

Eag

B6.457.794 65
BE.457.765 47
BE.457. 765,87

28,78

1.315.380.54
1.315.380,54
1. 270.747,70

44.632.84

826023132

826023132
3B.567.4B5 45

122 169 7B2 66

B4.415.460,49
B4.415.460.49
B4 41545644
4,05
1.098.282.40
1.088.282 40
1.108.515.18

10.232.78

B1.083 318,71

B1.068.318.71

B1.082 348,71

First - Fcap2021-10/ 33
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[ wr. | BEM03.216.423

APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT

Profit (loss) to be appropriated oo
Gain {loss) of the penod available for appropnation !
Profit {loss) brought forwand oo

Withdrawals from capital and reserves ...

Transfer to capital and reSeMvES .o

to the contribution ...
to legal reserve oo

Yo el PRS- s

Profit (loss) to be carried forward -

Owners' contribution in respect of lo55e5 -

Priofit to be distributee e s

Dividends - - -eecemeeee A

Directors’ or managers' eMemens s

EmployEES: «oeimv i rmensmsiasn
Other beneficiaries -....-.-

Panad

Preceding pesiod

16T.FE1.047 61
122.169.782.66
45.591.26495

120.859.831. 5%
B1.068.218.71
39.791.512.88

45.000.000,00

45531 264,95

30 265 566, 64
30.268.566 64

First - F-cap2021- 11735
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[ . | BEs403.216.42%

F-cap 8.4.2

ENTERPRISES LIMKED BY A PARTICIPATING INTEREST - PARTICIPATING
INTERESTS AND SHARES

Acquisition value at the end of the peried -

Movements during the perind

Sales and d:spus.a!s e T s e S e o
Transfers from one headmg T Tols [ RN | | o |

Acquisition value at the end of the period .o
Revaluation surpluses at the end of the period e

Movements during the perind
(212 o] 1T [ —
Acorasitons from thind parties .- e S
Cancelled - e A L e
Transfemed from one headlng to another

)
Revaluation surpluses at the end of the period
Amounts written down at the end of the period oo

Movements during the period
TR e o o v m e e e B b e B g 1 5 b S e B T
Wirithen Back -
Acguisitions from thard parties
Cancelled owing o sales and disposals ..o
Transfemed from one heading to another o))

Amounts written down at the end of the period
Uncalled amounts at the end of the period oo
Movements during the period (M)
Uncalled amounts at the end of the period ..o

HET BOOK VALIE AT THE END OF THE PERBODN -« o e Coimreemimem e ieeimne eimsm st

ENTERPRISES LINKED BY A PARTICIPATING INTEREST - AMOUNTS
RECEIVABLE

HET BOOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE PERIOD - e e

Movements during the period
T R Rt 1 R DY b hee bl i D b R e B A e LA
Arnounts writhen Bapk - i i e i i
Exchange differences LT ]
Other MOVBMEME e [+1{-)

HET BOCOK VALUE AT THE END OF THE PERIOD - moee e e e o

ACCUMULATED AMOUNTS WRITTEN OFF AMOUNTS RECENVABLE AT END OF
THE PEmun LI ST v v ararm S L) 8k AT .

Parod Preceding pericd

BIG2P

B372
B382

Bag2

B452P

B412
B2
B4z
B4az

B4E2

A522p

B512
B522
BS52P
B542

8552

[282)

2E3P

BSE2
A5092
BEOZ
BE2
BE22
BE32

[28:3)

Bas2

fe e VP e Ve 1.747.992 384 77

25228 667 48

1.743.221.045.25

priesedsirdrisd RO U R

Pri ERE R e

pri e et ey iri PSS AL

1.743.229.0458.25

AXEXE AN NANE

First - Fcap2021 - 127 35
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[ne | BE0403.216429

F-cap851 |

PARTICIPATIMG INTERESTS INFORMATION

PARTICIPATING INTERESTS AND SHARES |M OTHER ENTERPRISES

The followsng Est menfions the companies in which the company holds a parficipating interest {recorded in headings 280 and 282 of
assets), as well as the companies in which the company hiolds fights (recorded in headings 284 and 51/53 of assets) for an amount of
at least 107% of the capital, the equity or a class of shares of the company.

MAME, full address of the REGISTERED
OFFICE and for an entenphise govesmed
by Balgian law, the
COMPANY IDENTIFICATION MUMBER

UGB

BE 0403.053. 808

Publc imited company

Allee de [z Recherche 50, 1070
Anderdecht Belgium

Rights held Diata extracied from the most recent annual scoounts
bisid Capila land
direciy w::m nnual Cuire PR Bt revsiall
Makure accourds a5 | hoy PRPST
imber code Rl
L] % % per fin s
IWT22020 | EUR | 4885 185.238,00 735835778 00
Deoits de
vale 68387027 | 3516 a0

First - F-capd021 - 13733
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[ wr. | BEmqp3.216429 |

F-cap 6.8

OTHER INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS, ALLOCATION DEFERRED CHARGES AND ACCRUED INCOME

INVESTMENTS: OTHER INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS

Shares and current investments other than fixed income investments ...

Shares - Book value increased with the uncalied amount
Shares - Uncalled amount ..o
Precious metals and works of art ...

Fived income securifies .-
Fixed income secunties |55ued b}l GfEdl‘t |n51rt';:u|:|n5

Fixed term accounts with credit institutions ...

With residual term or nobice of withdrawal
up to one month . e
between one month Elnl:l ONE YEET .

O O B e e e e e e e e s

her investments not mentioned above e e

DEFERRED CHARGES AND ACCRUED INCOME

Allocation of heading 4901 of assets if the amount is significant
Charges a reporter license portall consed d'administration «.........

Charges 3 reporter loyer coffre-forf

G.FJa.rgesa regarter: maintenancehosting IT - e e R T S

Codes

Period

Precading period

Ei

BEa1
aeE2
8681

1943241
25240

7.525.70
1,602.75

First - Fcap202f - 14735
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[ wr. | BEo403.21642% |

| F-cap 8.7.1

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL

Capital

Isswed capital at the end of the period - .o
Issused capital at the end af the period -

Chamges during the period

Structure of the capial
Different categones of shares

Shares demateralized ...

Capital not paid

Uncalled capit,aa A AL A A L R AL e e e

Shareholders ha'.'m yetm pay up in fuII

Own shares
Held by the company itself
Amount of capital held VR
Corresponding number -:|f 5.hare-5
Held by the subsidianes
Amount of capial held ...
Corresponding number of shares ...

Commitments to issue shares
Owing 1o the exercise of conversion rights

Amount of outstanding converle I0aN5 ..o e e
Amount of capial to be subscribed .
Comesponding maximaem mrnherafﬁhares e be Bmmped o e Ui e s

Owing 1o the exercise of subscription rights

Mumber of outstanding subscrption mghts ...
Amount of capial to be subscribed

Comesponding maximaen number of shares to be msued e

Peariod

Preceding period

1008
(100}

Frie s iesiie iy
233.000.000,00

235.000.000,00

Value

Murnbest of shares

ATn2
BTDE

R ER SRR
AERNEN KRN RN

33327 927
11184671

Lincadled mmound

Capilal called but nol
paid

(1)
BT12

EEERE R e

KRN NN KN

Codes

Preriod

a7
arza

B3t
Bra2

E740
a741
E742

H745
a748
B747

arsi

First - Fcap2021 - 15/ 35
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[ wr. | BEOM03.216423

F-cap 8.7.1

Shares issued, non representing capital
Distribution
MNumbser of voting nghts atiached theredo -
ABocation by sharehoider

Numiber of shanes held by the company itEelf
Wumber of shares held by its subsigianies e e

Supplementary explanation refating 1o the contrbution {including the ndustry contribution)

Period

BT
BTE2

am
BTE1

Penaad

First - F-oap2021 - 16./35
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| Nr. | BED403216.429

F-cap 8.7.2

SHAREHOLDERS" STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY AT YEAR-END CLOSING DATE

A= reflected in the notifications received by the company pursuant to arficke 7:225 of the Belgian Companies and Associations Code,
article 14 fourth paragraph of the law of 2 May 2007 on the publication of major holdings and article 5 of the Foyal Decres of 21

August 2008 on further rules for certain multilateral rading facilities.

Rights held
KAME of the persons who hold the rights of the enterprise, specifying the
ADDRESS {of the regstered office, when i inwbes a iegal person) and the hrusitms of oting dnl
COMPANY EDENTIFICATION MUMBER, when i involves an enlerpise Bature Lirkad 45 Nt linked ta =
under Belgian law PP SecyiFBek
Altal Invest 5A
BE (ME6.644 441
Avenue de Tervueren 412 bie 13, 1150 Waluwe-Sainf-Fierre, Beiginm
Dvoile de wole 4 0995 263 o 22
Bamfin 54
BE (461.348.628
Avenue de Tervueren 186-188 bie 17, 1130 Woluwe-5ainf-Fierre, Balgium
Dvoiter die wole 3801855 0 BT
Financiere Enic Janssen SRL
BE (456.039 653
FRue Gachard 88 bie 14, 1050 Ixelles, Beigium
Dvoits de vake T0.513.874 o 82
Van Rychevarsel jean
Clos du Soled 6, 1150 Woliwe-Saint-Fiemre, Balgium
Dyoite de sole 11.7dd 1] 003
Janssen Daniel
Chaussée de Bruxelles 1104 1310 La Hulpe, Belgium
Dyoifet die vole 5.881.677 o 1321

First - Fcap2021 - 17/ 35
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[ W | BE405.21843% |

F-cap 6.8

STATEMENT OF AMOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED INCOME

Codes

Period

BREAKDOWN OF AMOUNTS PAYABLE WITH AN ORIGINAL PERIOD TO MATURITY OF MORE THAN OME
YEAR, ACCORDING TO THEIR RESIDUAL TERM

Current portion of amounts payable after more than one year falling due within one year
Financial debts .- SRR BT o = o e e e

Leasing and other similar dﬂ@aﬁnn; ik i i i e L s
Credit institutions .-...—......
Orher loans ‘s . et i - SO e
Trade debis
Suppliers Ll so il % i A e
Advance payments received on contract in progress: e
Oither ameuns paymble - L i L s i sl adi i

Tetal current portion of amounts payable after more than one year falling due within one year ..

Amuounts payable with a remaining term of more than one but not more than five years
Financial debts --.....-
Unsubordinated debentures - BELY. i ig i A
Leasing and other similar obBgations - i e i s e e
Credif INSHRRIONS. - n s imreimrmn o dem e mimiien
Other loans PILTI ;
Trade debis EEL A EA T P BELY R i i L DERERES Lo NPT
Biis nTexl:i‘w'qe payaﬁe- - S—
Advance payments received On CONtracts M PragraSS .o i e i s
Cther amounts payable ..o Lt i i L DERERES Lo NPT

Total amounts payable with a remaining ferm of more than one but not more than five years ..

Amounts payable with a remaining term of more than five years
Financial debts

Leasing and other similar obligations ...
Credit institutions i
Oiher loams . B, iy i % e o

Advance payments received on contracts in progress i i AR E L AR A T

B YOI s . i e e e e

Total amounts payable with a remaining ferm of more than five years oo

BA&E1

Bs01

fa2)

B2

8803
8813
BR23
BA3A

B853
BRE3
BATA
BAE3
8853
Bo03

a8513

First - F-cap2(21 - 1835
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[ vr. | BEo403.216429

F-cap 6.8

GUARANTEED AMOUNTS PAYABLE (inciuded in basdings 17 and 4248 of the labiites)

Amounts payable guaranteed by Beigu:n puh!u: authorities
Financiad debts ..----cee oo i % i A e e
Leasing and stmilar obBgations .- e i e
Credit institutions ...-... iz i ¥ i A

Bafls of exchange payable -.-....... i i i i LT AT
Advance payments received an contracts in progress ...
Remuneration and social security
Oher amounts payable

Total amounts payable guarantead by Belgian public authorifies oo

Amounts payable guaranteed by real securifies or irrevocably promised by the enterprise on its
own assels

Financial debts

Unsidbondinated dehenturas ... i 5 g LS A
Leasing and samilar colgations ... IR EIERERE
O PRI, ot 1w e -yt bt e e o b e S S e £ 4 e e
Other loans A R R R T R S I R T
Trade debis -.-. LY LY i i . L) i e

Remuneration and social security
Other amounts payable

Total amounts payable guaranteed by real securities or maiﬂy pmm:sed hy the enlerpnse
on its own assets

TAXES. REMUNERATION AND SOGCLAL SECURITY

Taxes fheading 450:7 and 179 af the fabilves)
Ouistanding tax debts _...
Accruing taxes payable
Estimated tares payable o e e e e e e e e

Remuneration and social security (headings 4548 and 179 of the iabifiies)
Amounts due to the Mational Social Security Office
Other amounts payable m respect of remuneration and social seumt'_f

Preriod

BI27
#8561
Hod 1
E851
ESG1
BT
&561
H0O1
9001
ai11
o321
961

8061

a0T2
9073
450

2078
a0TT

First - Fcap2021 - 13735
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[ wr. | BEo#03.216423

| F-cap 6.8 |

ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

Allocation of heading 49213 of liabilities if the amount is significant

Charpes & Fmper: MRS oo s e e e e e
o 76.866,67

Charges 3 impuler: COMMISSIoN 08 MESErvaHo N ...

Period

40,555, 56

First - F-cap2021 - 20/ 23
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Nr. | BE (0403216429 F-cap 6.10
| | -cap

OPERATING RESULTS

Codes Pericd Precading period

OPERATING INCOME

Net turnower
Aliocation by categories of activity

Other operating income
(Dperating subsidies and -::mnpen5a1|:|r'_.' amounts received from publu:

authorities 740

DOPERATING CHARGES

Employees for whom the enterprise submitied a DIMONA declaration or
who are recorded in the general p-ersm:m-l register

Total numbser at the closing date .
Average number of employees cal-:xﬂa'red in ﬁ.ﬁ-um-e- Equwdve-ms N —
Number of actual worked hours .- e B RS | MR R PEEERC AR

Personnel costs
Remuneration and direct social benefits .l | BID
Employers’ contnbution for social securty ................
Employers' premiums for extra statutory insurance ...
Other personnel costs
Retrement and survivors” pensions ........

i) | e

First - F-cap2021 - 21733



[ nr. | BEmM03.216423

F-cap 6.10

Provisions for pensions and other similar rights
Appropriations (uses. and wite-backs) oo V)

Amounts written off
Stocks and contracts in progress
REOnded e e e s s s e s
Trade debis
Besonded ..o i e e e

Provisions for liabilities and charge-s
Additions - LT

Other operating charges
Tawes related 10 0DPRTEHON e
T e e e L e e B R L L e g L 2

Hired temporary staff and ;:Etsunﬂei piir.:e:i at the enler;:nse 5 -dlspnsal
Total nurnber at the closing date - e i i
Average number calculated mﬁﬂ-ume Equu.raamu-

Mumier of actual worked hours .- e P e

Codes

Peniod Preceding periad

110
ai1i

9112
5113

115
o118

G40
64178

acar

ai7

26.519,04 868,00

First - Fcapl(2f - 32/35
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[ r. | BEm403.216.429

F-cap 8.11

FINANCIAL RESULTS

RECURRING FINAMCIAL INCOME

Other financial income

Sasbsidies granted by public authorities and recorded as income for the

peesriod
Captal salySdefag <., il L i i Ly
Interest subsidies ...

Aliccation of other financial income

Currency differences realized ...
Others

RECURRING FINANCIAL CHARGES
Depreciation of loan iSSue BXPEMSES ... e
Amounts written off current assets

Other financial charges
Amount of the discount borme b].l the en'lerpns-e a5 a mnﬂlofmguuatw@
amounts receivable . 5} A

Provisions of a financial nature

AEPEREARRlREYS - L e L L e L
Uses and write-backs e

Allocation of other financial charges
Currency diferencas Mealized -
Currency transiation diferenees
Others
Frais de banque .-
Perfes latenfes sur swaps u'e fam ﬂ"LrJremt.,pertm':- Elﬁcaee n'e fa
compiabilisation de couveriure) .- %
Ecarts de paements -
T vl 0= 1) RS-
Différence de change ... S5
Frais de souscription Etweme de b.rres

Codes

Pericd Presoeding period

8125

E501

8502

BE10
G511

G653

G560
B561

G54
B55

27328 T4 1696250

-19.735, 27 =23 264,00
0,00 o0

000 76,65
223322 -8.26
34 666,15 0,00
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F-cap B.12 |

INCOME AND CHARGE OF EXCEPTIONAL SIZE OR INCIDEHCE

Hon-recurring operating income -
Write-back afdepmmam and afmnnunls writien ciff |ntangi:ée ir1|:| hnulhle
fixed asseis .. e - S S ALy
Wite-back nfptmllsnns for non-recurmring cperating Eabiities and charges i
Capital gains on dispesal of intangible and tangible fixed asset .
Other non-recumng operating income - T e,
Hon-recurring financial income e

Wite-back of amounts written down ﬁninl::sa! fn:Ed Fsssts
Write-back of provisions for non-recurring financsal liabilites and charges ...
Capital gains on disposal of financial fiked 55815 .o imiie i
Oither non-recunming financial Meome .

HON-RECLRRING EXPENEES - oo ettt s

Hon-recurring operating charges .. i
Mon-recurring depreciation of and amounts writien nﬁ fmmah-m EHpENEES,
intangible and tangible fized assets - fE e AT
Provisions fior non-recwming npemmg Ilahllme-s anai d!.amﬁ Appmpnam
(71" [ ———— HiE ih: PECRE I S S o & ') o |
C.agxlal loszes on dlspnial nf:manglhle and la.mg'bieﬁxed assets .

Other non-recuming operating changes ...

Mon-recurring operating charges camed to assets as restructuning costs - :l

Hon-recwrring financial charges .o
Armounts written off financial fived assets
Provisions for nun—rEl:!mmq fanancial kaiﬁues and eharges Appmgmaunns
(7 R — L i SSOBR |5 ||
C.q}flal losses on disposal of financial fived assets
Other non-recuming financial charges -
Mon-recurring financial changes carried to assats as restructuring costs .-}

Preceding period

T8

[TEA)

TED

TE20
TEID
TE4M

(Tea)
Ta1
TEN
TEM
1A%

[BEA)

First - Fcap2021 - 24735
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INCOME TAXES AND OTHER TAXES

Codes Period

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes on the result of the pericd _. OSSOSO - Lt
Income t3xes paid and withhobding tanes due or |:|a||:| i LSRR B
Excess of income fax prepayments and withholding taxes paud remrded under aszefs o138
Estimated addibonal taxes 9137 Sy

Income tawes on the result of prior periods .o | O3
Additional income taxes due or paid e G138
Additional income taxes estimated or provided for . | B40

In so far as taxes of the period are materially affected by differences between the profit before

tawes as stated in annual accounts and the estimated taxable profit

AU 86 457 765,87

Codes Pericd

Status of deferred taxes

Dieferred taxes representing assets .. - S I <) .5 147.295.128,78
Accumulated tax losses deda.;ntﬂ:de me ful:m‘e t,axahle gmﬁ*ls b e S B s | SERHERD R i T

Other deferred fawes representing assets

Revenus definiivernents (3x8s ... DA R N 147 299128, 78

DE'ﬁen\ed tases represemng Eabames
Alocation of defered taxes representing habdities

Codes Peniod Precading period

VALUE ADDED TAXES AND OTHER TAXES BORNE BY THIRD PARTIES

Value added taxes charged
To the enterprise (deductible] ..o, | STAE
Byt enterprise o to D ple ek s g i pp g i na | Bl R A P Gl gLy

Amounts withheld on behalf of third party

For payroll withholding taxes ...
For withhobding taxes on invesiment income ...

147 45.924,06 79.847,50
G148 a3.751.831,47 3.245.883,79
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F-cap 8.14

RIGHTS AND COMMITMENTS NOT REFLECTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

PERZDMNAL GUARANTEES PROVIDED OR IRREVOCABLY PROMISED @Y THE ENT|
SECURITY FOR DEBTS AND COMMITMENTS OF THIRD PARTIES - -ror-oimmrmsmsmmitinm it i

Of which
Balis of exchange in circulation endorsed by the enterprise ..
Bilis of exchamnge in circulation drawn or guarantesd by the enbeq'pnse
Magimum amount for which other debts or commitments of thind parhﬁ ane guamn‘teed hy Ihe
enterprise S b i e R S

REAL GUARANTEES
Real guarantees provided or irmevocably promised by the enterprise on its own assets as
security of debts and commitments of the enterprise
Maortgages
Baook value of the immovable properties mosigaged ..
Amaount of registration _._ 'y
Amaount of registration h:,' ma!da‘re
Pledging of goodwill
Pledging of goodwil - Max amount .. s
Piediging of goodwill - Amount of the reglsum h].' mmsdate
Piedging of other assets
Pledging of other assets - Book valee ... s
Pledging of obher assebs - Man @mount .o i e
Guarantees provided on future assets
Guarantees provided on fubure assefs - Amount assets invelved .
Guarantess provided on fubure assets - Max amount ...
Seller privilege
Seler privilege - Book value ... i ! i
Seller privilege - Unpaid amount ........ " . "

Codes

Period

2149

2150

8151

9153

81611
1G]
81631

a1
91T

91811
1821

81911
a1a2

22011
a0

18.676.066,27

First - Fcap2021 - 26/ 35
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F-cap 8.14

Real guarantees provided or irrevocably promised by the enterprise on its own assets as
security of debts and commitments of third parties

Martgages

Book value of the immovable properties morgaged - T S e A

Amount of registraton .- i T T L i

Amount of registration by mandate
Pledging of goodwill

Pledging of goodwill - Max ameoasnt . i g

Piedging of goodwall - Amount of the registration on gn-u-dwlll pledged by mand.:le
Plediging of other assets

Piedging of other assets - Book value ...

Piedging of other assets - Mam SmounE i s

Guarantees provided on futwre assets

Guaraniees provided on future assets - Amount 355818 iMVOIVEL e e e
Guarantees provided on future assets - Ma AMOUTE - i i

Seller privitege

Seller privilege - Book VAIUE - v s s s e e e
Sedler priviege - Unpaid amount i i i A

GOODS AND VALUES, NOT DISCLOSED IN THE BALANCE SHEET, HELD BY THIRD PARTIES [N THEIR
CWH MAME BUT AT RISK TO AND FOR THE BEMEFIT OF THE ENTERPRISE

FoRWARD TRANSACTIONS

Goods purchased (b0 be reeeied] - e s
Goods sold (to be delivered) .......... " " " "

Cuwrrencies purchased [to be received] - e e

Currencies sold (to be delivered) ...

Codes Perind

BT | Lhooasaaatica
91622
91832

a7z
1722

gigt2
91E22

91912
a1922

= Fiek i
BRIAE| Sesdaodatiny

Codes Period

ax13 LU R R Fl LA
a1a S
a5 T e e

9218 B e

First - F-cap2021- 27 /35
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COMMITMENTS RELATING TO TECHMICAL GUARANTEES IN RESPECT OF SALES OR SERVICES

SUPPLEMENT RETIREMENTS OR SURVIVORS PENSION PLANS IN FAVOUR OF THE PERSOMNMNEL OR THE EXECUTIVES OF THE

ENTERPRISE

Brief description

Measures taken by the enterprise to cover the resulting charges

PENSIONS FUNDED BY THE ENTERPRISE
Estimated amount of the commitments resulting from past services
Methods of estimation

HATURE AND FINANCIAL IMPACT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE CLOSING DATE NOT INCLUDED [N THE

BALAMNCE SHEET OR THE INCOME STATEMENT

Codes Preriod
9220 RHAE L
Poeriod

First - Fcap2021 - 28/ 35

53



[ . | BE0403216.428 F-cap £.14

COMMITMENTS TO PURCHASE OR SALE AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AS ISSUER OF OPTIONS FOR SALE OR
PURCHASE

HATURE, COMMERCIAL OBJECTIVE AND FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES OF TRANSACTIONS NOT REFLECTED IN
THE BALANCE SHEET

Provided that the risks or advantages coming from these transactions are significant and if the
disclosure of the risks or advantages is necessary to appreciate the financial situation of the company

Pariod
OTHER RIGHTS AND COMMITMENTS NOT REFLECTED iM THE BALANCE SHEET (including those which can
not be quantified)
L'encowrs des e.rnprunrs bancaires en % de la valewr boursisre de la parﬁ'c:marm dans UGE {emgeme =
0% - 0,29
Fonds propres en % du tofal des actifs fexigence = ?ﬂ:“:j R L U R R e e e 96,31
La valeur boursiére des actions I!.I'GB g'ag'ee.s en H- de lencours des Empmwés bancaires .l'emgenme > 157%) 267,62

First - Fcap2021 - 22735
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH AFFILIATED ENTERPRISES, ASSOCIATED ENTERPRISES AND OTHERS ENTERPRISES
LINKED BY PARTICIPATING INTERESTS

Codes Presicd Precading pariod

AFFILIATED ENTERPRISES

Fimancial fived amsebs . i | (2E0NT)
Participating meresls £ e s | (2
Subordinated amounts mﬁ_wabie aar
Other amounts receivable ... kich

BAMoURts FEeeiVaBlE e e | 220 sy
i TR S S S 0 O S U O 1
MWithin one Pear - e e (B3

Current inwestmenls ... | B3R
oSSV SOTSTSRE S 5.~ L |
Amounts recaivable i i | B3

Orver cne WS- o S Sl i i e s e e Dy 2351
VLN ONE YEET - e ettt e st ernieeenss | ST

Personal and real guarantees
Provided or imevocably promised by the enterprise as 5ec1.|rii}.l for debis or
commitments of affliated enterprises ... .. | 93a1 i R i S SRR
Provided or imevocably promised by aﬂ'ﬁa‘led en'lerpnsers as semmyfur
debts or commitments of the enterprise ... | 8381

Other significant financial commitments ... (2401 N AR O

Financial results
Income from financial fiwed assebs . | B2
Income from cument assets ...

Cther financial income ... ittt et [ E i
Debt charges .. | R AR L S e e e | . iy X
Other financial c-'haa'ges U SSUS SRR - £ | -
Disposal of fixed assets
Capital gains obtained .-..ooeoveemeen - S - adat -
Capital losses suffered - iy iy o | 949t o A

First - F-cap2021 - 3035
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F-cap 8.15 |

ASSOCIATED ENTERPRISES

Financial fixed assets ...
Participating interests .
Subordinated amounts rECEIEBIE i i i
Cither amounts receivable ...

Amounts receivable ...
Chver one year

Amounts payable .........
Cheer one year ..
Within one year -.......-

Personal and real guarantees
Prowvided or mrevocably promised by the EI'II:EI'p!tSE as sea.mﬁ' for debts or
commitments of associated enterprises ...

Provided or imevocably promised by associsted 'Eﬁ1EI'|:II'ISE as semmrfot
debts or commitments of the enterprise . s 2

Other significant financial commitments
OTHER ENTERPRISES LINKED BY PARTICIPATING INTERESTS

Financial fixed asses o e L L i il
Participating interests - AR LR A L L S B L B L
Subordinated amounts rEceVabIE - i
Oither Srmouimts MECEIVEBIE o ecoemee e st e e s s re s e e

AT FREBIaIIE <o i i i i e i i e R b e e b i
Civer pne year ... -
Within one year .-

Amounts payable ...
Chver one year

Preceding penod

o253

8273

0383

1.743.221.040,25
1.743.221.048.25

17992 381.7F
1.717.892.384. 77

TRANSACTIONS WITH ENTERPRISES LINKED BY PARTICIPATING INTERESTS OUT OF MARKET CONDITIONS

Mention of these transactions if they are significant, including the amount of the transactions, the
nature of the link, and all information about the transactions which should be necessary to get a better

understanding of the situation of the company

.00

First - Fcap2021 - 31/ 33
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F-cap 8.18

FINAHCIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH

MRECTORS, MANAGERS, INDIVIDUALS OR BODIES CORPORATE WHO CONTROL THE ENTERPRISE
WITHOUT BEING ASSOCIATED THEREWITH OR OTHER ENTERPRISES CONTROLLED BY THESE
PERSONS

Amounts receivable from these PerSomS e

Conditions on amounts receivable, rate, duration, possibly reimbuwrsed amounts, canceled
Emounts of renounced amounts

Guarantees provided in thelr faWOUT oo
Other significant commitments undertaken in their favour o

Amount of direct and indirect remunerations and pensions, included in the income statement,
as long as this disclosure does not concern exclusively or mainly, the situation of a single
identifiable person

To directors and MENAPETS .o s

To former directors and former MEnNaEers ...

AUMTORS OR PEOPLE THEY ARE LINKED TO

Auditor’s fees

Fees for exceptional services or special missions executed in the compa
Orher attestation missions ...
Tax consultaney ... ...
Orther missions external to the audit ...

Fees for exceptional services or special missions executed in the company by people they are
linked to

A T e g O P P PN T S P S S

Oher missions external 1o the awdit ...

Mentions related to article 3:64, §2 and §4 of the Companies and Associations Code

Codes Period

8500

2501 e

as02 =

4501 4E7. 135,50

4504 40.926,00

Codes Pericd

9505 13,000, 00

250461

95082 & 2 &

a5083 - . o

a5081 - . o

45082

95083 SRR
First - F-cap2021 - 32/ 35
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F-cap 8.17

DERIVATIVES NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

FOR EACH CATEGORY OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES NOT MEASURED AT FAIR WALUE

Cabsgory
R Precading Preceding
dcr-'mlfvr Hlged riak Specutabon | e Penod: Booked Penod: Resl perind: Booked period: Rnal
finamncial hedging valun viLie
value valun
mstrumants
e de By
o frésonene fig
s ampruns
Swaps de faux | bancaines &
diniendd taux Raffant Hadgng a0 0.00 44 450,00 -T07 B, 00

FINANCIAL FIMED ASSETS CARRIED AT AN AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF FAIR VALUE

Booked walue

Real value

Amount of individual assets or appropriate groupings of those assets

Reasons for not reducing the book value

Informations that suggest than the book value will be recovered

First - F-cap2021 - 33/ 35
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VALUATION RULES

& rowval duo- 28

du Code des Jocietes

Jociess=.

les mont =tablies la= =va

CRE IonT JpEDesln

13 Jociece.

aluations repordent aux criseres ncerice et de bomnne feoi.

= prudence, d=

chargea et produitcs afférents 3 l'exercice oo a2 des exercices anterieurs,

date de paiement ou

emens effeccif de ces produits est

Le= regles d'svalua Leur enonce ou leur application par rapport a

rcice precede

pressnte de sorce gu'une distinoction est effectuse en

Un actif est classe en tant

courant (ou circulans) lorsgu'il se compose de Sresorerie ou equivalenss, ou lossgue la

1'actif dana

date de cloture. Tous les autres actifs sont classes en actifs non
Une dette =at

en tant gu'elément courant (e dettes 2 ar an au plus =) lorague la Jocifce s'attend &

detse dans les douse mois suiva

de cléture oum

lorsgue la detse doit Btre reglee dan= les douce mois suivans L
gue la Sociese ne disposes pas dun
inconditionnel de differer le reglement de la decte pour au =moins douse moi= apres l1a dace

de cloture. Toutes les zutres dectes sont

classsms =n tant gu'elemencs pon couranss (= dettes

Eegles specifigues
Immebil E

La par mat portes au bilam & sa waleur d'acgu ion, deduction

Erentms .

de walmura

depensss dirsctemsnt

1'acm itipnl, =

la participation

1te =5 bonoe foi;

cazactere durable, ane reduction de waleur sgale 3

durable de

pilan = lm=

ont porcees

Couvrertures dey flux d= tresoreris

LR -

Dha 2 octobre 2017 3a 15 mai 2021, la Sociece a eu recours & des swyaps de Saux d

2
OTEIET DOouUr

couvrir [=n Pi:_.-;ﬂl 30n expositi tresgrezie resaltant

Es et qui sont associs=s a

—ECus =g

SoIf EaysE IEgLATIEY dans

0Nt pressnces =ous forme d'un=

le compte de resul

les procata

sWaps SonRt egaleme

FISISOTEn IUD uUn=s
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Valears dispomibles

Les waleur sont portess au bilan 3@ leur walear nominale.
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The Corporate Willags
DA Vinclasn 9, Box .4

8-1930 Zaventem

[Free translation]

STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE GENERAL MEETING OF
FINANCIERE DE TUBIZE 5A FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

In the context of the statutory audit of the annual accounts of FINANCIERE DE TUBIZE 54
("the Company™'}), we hereby present our statutory auditor’s report. It includes our report of
the annual accounts and the other legal and regutatory requirements. This report is an

integrated whole and 1s indivisible.

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting of 307" of April 2021,
following the proposal formulated by the board of directors. Our statutory auditor’s mandate
expires on the date of the general meeting deliberating on the annual accounts closed on
31* of December 2023. We have performed the statutory audit of the annual accounts of the

Company for the first year.

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Unqualified opinion

.—

We have audited the annual accounts of
the Company, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2021, the profit
and loss account for the year then ended
and the notes to the annual accounts,
characterized by a balance sheet total of
1.759.150.556.,93 EUR and a profit and loss
account showing a profit for the year of
83.602.313,21 EUR.

In our opinion, the annual accounts give a
true and fair view of the Company’s net
equity and financial position as at 31
December 2021, as well as of its results for
the year then ended, in accordance with
the financial reporting framework
applicable in Belgium.

Basis for unqgualified opinion
.—

We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing
(I5A%) as applicable in Belgium. Our
responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the 'Statutory

auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the annual accounts’ section in this report.
We have complied with all the ethical
requirements that are relevant to the
audit of annual accounts in Belgium,
including those concerning independence.

We have obtained from the administrative
body and the officials of the Company the

explanations and information necessary for
performing ocur audit.

We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

—

Key audit matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the annual
accounts of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the annual accounts as a
whole, and in formving our opinicn thereon,
and we do-not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Reference to the notes to the annual
accounts: C6.4.2, C6.5.1, C6.19
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Description of the key audit matter

As of 31 December 2021, the financial
assets held by the company amounted to
1.743.221.049,25 euros and represented
99.09% of the total balance sheet. This
financial asset consists exclusively of the
stake held in the listed company UCE 54
{ISIN:BEQOO3739530).

We consider that the audit of financial
assets forms the key audit matter of the
company because of the relative
importance of this position in the total
balance sheet as well as the theoretical
risk inwolved in the valuation of the
participation interest held,

How the key audit matter was addressed
during the awdit

Our audit work mainly consisted of the
following procedures:

- We validated the ownership of the stake
heid by the avdited company;

- We have checked whether the value
retained for the financial asset does not
show any permanent loss of value
compared with the information available
as to its market value.

Responsibilities of administrative body
for the drafting of the annual gccownts
A

The administrative body is responsible for
the preparation of annual accounts that
give a true and fair view in accordance
with the financial reporting framework
applicable in Belgium, and for such
internal controd as the administrative body
determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of annual accounts that are
free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the annual accounts, the
administrative body is responsible for
assessing the Company”™s ability to

continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the administrative
body either intends to Liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Statutory auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the annual accounts
‘—

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the annual
accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frawsd or
error, and to issue a statutory auditor's
report that includes our opinion.
Reascnable assurance 15 a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with i5As
will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if,
individually or in the ageregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these annual accounts.

When executing our audit, we respect the
legal, regulatory and normative framework
applicable Tor the audit of annual accounts
in Belgium. However, a statutory audit
does not guarantee the future viability of
the Company, neither the efficiency and
effectiveness of the management of the
Company by the administrative body. Our
responsibilities with respect to the
administrative body’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting are described
below.

As part of an audit in accordance with
1545, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

FIRARCIENE DE TUBIY 34
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= |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the annual accounks,
whether due to fraud or error; design
and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a
matenal misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for cne resulting
from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

+ Obtain an understanding of intermnal
control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures-that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control;

= Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting pelicies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the
administrative body;

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the
administrative body's use of the going
concern basts of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going Concern.
If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are reguired ko
draw attention in our statutory auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the
annual accounts or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our
statutory auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a
going concem;

Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and centent of the annual
accounts and whether the annual
accounts represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the admimistrative
body regarding, among octher matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identified during our audit.

We also provide the administrative body
with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the
administrative body, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year, and are
therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our statutory
auditor’s report, unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the
matter.

CTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

Responsibilities of the administrative
body

'—

The administrative body is responsible for
the preparation and the content of the
management report as well as for the
compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements regarding bookkeeping, with
the Code of companies and associations
and with the Company’s by-laws.

FreanCIERE B TUSLEE Si:
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Responsibilities of the statutory auditor
.—

In the context of our mission and in
acogrdance with the Belgian standard
{versian revised 2020) which is
complementary to the International
Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable
n Belgium, it 15 our responsibility to
verify, in all material aspects, the
management report and compliance with
certain provisions of the Code of
Companies and Associations and of the
Company's by-laws, as well as to report on
these elements.

Aspects related to the management
report
-—

In our opinion, after having performed
specific procedures in relation to the
management report, the management
report is consistent with the annual
accounts for the same financial year, and
it is prepared in accordance with articles
3:5 and 3:6 of the Code of Companies and
Associations.

In the context of our audit of the annual
acoounts, we are also responsible for
considering, in particular based on the
knowledge we have obtained during the
audit, whether the management report
contains any material misstatement, i.e.
any information which is inadequately
disclosed or otherwise misleading. Based
on the procedures we have performed,
there are no material misstatements we
have to report to you.

Statement related to independence

.

Our audit firm and our network did not
provide sefvices which are incompatible
with the statutory audit of annual
accounts and our audit firm remained
independent of the Company during the
terms of our mandate.

Furopean Single Electronic Format
(ESEF)

In accordance with the standard on
auditing the conformity of financial
statements with the European Single
Electronic Format (hereinafter “ESEF™),
we also audited the conformity of the ESEF
format with the regulatory technical
standards established by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 20197815 of

17 December 2018 (hereinafter:

“Delegated Regulation™).

The managing body s responsible for
preparing, in accordance with ESEF
requirements, the financial statements in
the form of an electronic file in ESEF
format (hereinafter “digital financial
statements™) included in the annual
financial report.

It 35 our responsibility to obtain sufficient
and appropriate supporting information to
conclude that the format of the digital
financial statements complies in all
material aspects with the ESEF
requirements under the Delegated
Regulation.

Based on our work, we believe that the
format of the digital financial statements
included in the annual financial report of
Financiére de Tubize 54 as at 31 December
2021 complies in all material aspects with
the ESEF requirements under the
Delegated Regulation.

Other statements
'—
= Without prejudice to certain formal
aspects of minor importance, the
accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the legal and
regulatory requirements applicable in
Belgium,
+ The appropriation of results proposed to
the general meeting complies with the

FalniERE B8 TUBZE 44l

e abkory sudibors et 10 She gisersl fwwting of See compeey on B sl aceosims fo e et sadid 11 Decerber 2537



IBDO

legal provisions and the Company's
by-laws.

= We do not have to report to you any
transactions undertaken or decisions
taken in breach of the by-laws or the
Code of companies and associations,

Brussels, 25 Februeary 2022

BDO Réviseurs d'Entreprises SAL
Statutory auditor

Represented by Christophe COLSON
Certified auditor

FianCIERE e Tusils Sa.

Satsbery uusitor's smpurt (o the gl rmeeting of Se congeey on B anmoel acemnts e e gt esded 1 Secestbwe D8

66



EU-IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information
1.1. Identification
1.2. Board of Directors
1.3. Independent Auditor
1.4. Activities and mission
2. Financial statements
2.1. Statement of financial position
2.2. Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
2.3. Statement of changes in equity 2020
2.4, Statement of changes in equity 2019
2.5. Statement of cash flows
3. Accounting policies
3.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements
3.2. Summary of significant accounting policies
3.2.1. Equity accounting of UCB
3.2.2. Bank borrowings
323 Cash flow hedges
3.2.4. Income taxes

3.2.5. Significant accounting policies UCB

3.3. Judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

3.4. Initial application of amended standards

3.5. Impact of future application of issued new standards

4. Notes

4.1. Participating interest in UCB
4.1.1. Book value
4.1.2. Share of other comprehensive income of UCB
4.1.3. Fair value

4.1.4. Concert

4.1.5. Summarized financial information about UCB
4.2. Financial instruments

4.2.1. Financial instruments by category

4.2.2. Risks related to financial instruments

4.2.3. Fair value of financial instruments

4.2.4. Prepayments

4.2.5. Cash and cash equivalents
4.2.6. Bank borrowings

4.2.7. Derivatives

42.8. Other creditors

4.3. Income tax
4.3.1. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
4.3.2. Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
4.4, General and administrative expenses
4.5. Earnings per share
4.6. Dividends
4.7. Capital management
4.8. Related parties’ transactions

68
68
68
68
69
70
70
71
72
73
74
74
74
75
75
75
76
77
78
78
78
78
79
79
79
80
80
80
81
82
82
82
83
83
83
83
86
86
87
87
88
88
88
88
88
89

The EU-IFRS financial statements of Financiére de Tubize for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 have been
established by a resolution of the board of directors of 25 February 2022 and will be communicated to the general

shareholders meeting of 29 April 2022
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1. General information

1.1. Identification

NAME: Financiére de Tubize

Legal form: Public Limited Company

Address: Allée de la Recherche 60, 1070 Anderlecht, Belgium
Register of legal persons - Commercial Court of Brussels
Website: http://www.financiere-tubize.be

Company number BE 0403 216 429
EU-IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS to be communicated to the general meeting of 29/04/2022
Period from 01/01/2021 au 31/12/2021
Prior period from 01/01/2020 au 31/12/2020

1.2. Board of Directors

Vauban NV (BE 0338.114.246), Chairman of the board of directors, Rue Ducale 47-49, B-1000 Bruxelles,c
represented by Gaétan Hannecart,

AVO Management BV (BE0462.974.466), member of the board of directors, Avenue Franklin Roosevelt 210/8,
B-1050 Bruxelles, represented by Annick van Overstraeten,

Praksis BV ( BE0451476206), represented by Bruno Holthof, member of the board of directors, Paardenmarkt
117 Boite 3, B-2000 Antwerpen,

Eric Cornut ,member of the board of directors, Bleicherweg 4, 4102 Binningen Switzerland,

Nikita SRL ( BE 0473.566.767), represented by Cyril Janssen, member of the board of directors, Rue des Mélézes
29, B-1050 Ixelles,

Charles-Antoine Janssen, member of the board of directors, Claire Colline, Chaussée de Bruxelles 110, B-1310
La Hulpe,

Edouard Janssen, member of the board of directors, Chaussée de Bruxelles 108, B-1310 La Hulpe,

Evelyn du Monceau, member of the board of directors, Avenue des Fleurs 14, B-1150 Woluwé-Saint-Pierre,
Fiona de Hemptinne, member of the board of directors, Fairlawn Grove 20, W4 5EH London, UK,

Cédric van Rijckevorsel, member of the board of directors, Chipstead Street 37, SW6 3S3 London, UK,

Cynthia Favre d’Echallens, member of the board of directors, Route d’Ottignies 74A, B-1380 Lasne.

1.3. Independent Auditor

BDO Réviseurs d’entreprises SRL (BE 0431.088.289), commissaire (Register IRE n° B00023), Da Vincilaan, 9
Box E.6 1930 Zaventem, represented by Christophe Colson (Register IRE n° A02033)
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1.4. Activities and mission

Financiere de Tubize (the “Company”) is a mono-holding company, listed on Euronext Brussels under the ISIN
code TUB BE0003823409, that holds and manages a participating interest of 68,387,021 UCB shares,
representing 35.16% of the total shares issued by UCB, a biopharmaceutical company domiciled in Belgium
whose shares are also listed on Euronext Brussels. Financiéere de Tubize is the reference shareholder of UCB.
The mission of Financiere de Tubize is to create long term value for its shareholders by supporting, as a stable
reference shareholder, the maximization of UCB’s potential and a sustainable growth of its industrial project.

For information about UCB : www.ucb.com

NV Vauban
Represented by Gaétan Hannecart Evelyn du Monceau
Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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2. Financial statements

2.1. Statement of financial position

€000

31 December Notes 2021 2020
Participating interest in UCB 4.1.1. 3,251,834 2,826,125
Non-current assets 3,251,834 2,826,125
Prepayments 4.2.4. 29 50
Other receivables 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4.2.5. 15,900 983
Current assets 15,930 1,033
Assets 3,267,764 2,827,158
Equity 3,246,826 2,792,901
Capital and reserves 2.3 3,246,826 2,792,901
Bank borrowings 4.2.6. - -
Derivatives 4.2.7. - -
Non-current liabilities - -
Bank borrowings 4.2.6. 20,041 33,516
Derivatives 4.2.7. - 102
Other creditors 4.2.8. 897 639
Current liabilities 20,938 34,257
Liabilities 20,938 34,257
Equity and liabilities 3,267,764 2,827,158
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2.2. Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

€000 Notes 2021 2020
PROFIT

Share of profit of UCB 382,267 | 263,742
Sales and benefits - -
Other financial income - -
Borrowing cost 4.2.6. (996) (974)
General and administrative expenses 4.4. (1,534) (2,249)
Non-recurring operating expenses (7

Profit before tax 380,090 260,519
Income taxes 4.3.2. - -
Profit 380,090 | 260,519
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Share, after tax, of other comprehensive income of UCB 103,049 | (90,335)
Those that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4.1.2. 31,300 (8,798)
Those that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when certain 4.1.2. 71.749 | (81,537)
conditions are met

Other items, after tax, of other comprehensive income, after tax, that will

be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when certain conditions are

met (207) 120
Cash flow hedges 4.2.7. (207) 120
Other comprehensive income 108,842 | (90,215)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 482,932 | 170,304
Profit attributable to

Non-controlling interests

Owners of the parent 380,090 | 260,519
Comprehensive income attributable to

Non-controlling interests

Owners of the parent 482,932 170,304
Earnings per share (in €)

Basic and diluted 4.5. 8.54 5.85
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2.3. Statement of changes in equity 2021

Capital Assets Cash
and Retained | Treasury | Other | Translation | held flow Total
share earnings shares |reserves | adjustments| for equity
. hedges
premium sale

Balance at
01/01/2021 236,225 2,853,189 | (143,057) | (52,445) (134,118) | 13,719 | 19,388)| 2,792,901
Dividends -1 (30,269) - - - - -1 (30,269)
Comprehensive
income - - - - - - - -
Profit 380,090 - 380,090
Share of other
comprehensive
income of UCB - 31,300 101,377 8075| (37,703) 103,049
Cash flow hedges - (87) (87)
Reclassification
adjustments - - - - (120) (120)

-| 380,090 -| 31,300 101,377| 8,075| (37,910) 482,932
Share of other
changes of net
assets of UCB - - - - - - - -
Share based
payments - 26,992 - 26,992
Transfer between
reserves - (22,833) 22,833 (697) 697 -
Treasury shares - (23,430) (23,430)
Transfers to 436 436
minority interests
Reclassification
adjustment - 37 - - - 37

- 4,632 (597) (697) - 697 - 4,035
Changes in the
number of own
shares held by UCB - (1,679) (533) (198) (505) 52 90 (2,773)
Balance at
31/12/2021 236,225 3,205,963 | (144,187) | (22,040) (33,246) | 22,543 | (18,432) | 3,246,826
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2.4. Statement of changes in equity 2020

Capital Assets Cash
and Retained | Treasury | Other | Translation | held flow Total
share earnings shares |reserves | adjustments| for equity
. hedges
premium sale

Balance at
01/01/2020 236,225 2,629,081 | (137,588) | (42,902) (20,891)( 3,086( (2,741)| 2,664,300
Dividends -1 (27,598) - - - - -1 (27,598)
Repurchase of
own shares - - - - - - - -
Comprehensive
incomes - - - - - - - -

Profit 260,519 260,519

Share of other

comprehensive

income of UCB (8,798) (113,301)| 9,748 22,016 (90,335)

Cash flow

hedges - - - 120 120
Reclassification
adjustment - - - - - -

-| 260,519 -1 (8,798) (113,301) | 9,748| 22,136 170,304

Share of other
changes of net
assets of UCB - - - - - - - -

Share based

payments 25,072 - - 25,072

Transfer

between

reserves (23,650) 23,650 (896) 896

Treasury

shares (29,629) (29,629)
Transfers to
minority
interests (583) - - - (583)

- 839 (5,979) (896) - 896 - (5,140)

Changes in the
number of own
shares held by
UCB - (9,652) 480 151 74 (11) (7) (8,965)
Balance at
31/12/2020 236,225 2,853,189 | (143,057) | (52,445) (134,118) | 13,719 | 19,388 | 2,792,901
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2.5. Statement of cash flows

€000 Notes 2021 2020
Directors remuneration & attendance fees (381) (469)
Remuneration general manager (213) (118)
Statutory auditor’s fee (16) (14)
Professional services fees (414) (281)
Contributions (138) (127)
Payment of services - (85)

Payment of expenses - -

Gift - (1,000)
Advance (D -
Cash flows from operating activities (1,163) (2,094)
Acquisition of UCB shares (25,263) -
Dividends received 86,458 84,415
New annual tax on securities accounts (36) -
Cash flows from investing activities 61,159 84,415
Dividends paid (30,269) (27,598)

Withholding tax recovered 11 -
Interest on withholding tax - -
Interests and commissions paid (1,271) (1,183)

Reimbursement of bank borrowings (67,500) (55,000)

Drawings from the confirmed lines 54,000 2,000
Bank costs (28) (19)
Cash flows from finance activities (45,079) (81,800)
Total cash flows 14,917 521
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 4.2.5. 983 462
Cash and cash equivalents end of period 4.2.5. 15,900 983

3. Accounting policies

3.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

To provide a useful and complete set of information to the market, the Company prepares, in addition to the
annual accounts established in accordance with the Company and Associations code and Belgian accounting
law (BE GAAP), financial statements in accordance with international financial reporting standards as adopted
by the European Union (EU-IFRS), with equity accounting of UCB.

The EU-IFRS financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
instruments that are measured at fair value. The financial statements are prepared on the basis of going concern.

74



Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between willing parties at the measurement date.

The Company uses valuation techniques to measure fair values, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All inputs to measure fair value are categorized within one of the following levels:

—  Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
—  Level 2 - directly or indirectly observable inputs, other than those of level 1

—  Level 3 - unobservable inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines at each
reporting date when transfers, if any, have occurred between levels in the hierarchy.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures (note 4.2.3.), the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the items disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position.

Current / non-current classification

An asset is current when it is cash or cash equivalents, or when it is expected to be realized within twelve
months after the reporting date. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date, or when it
is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date and the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting
period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred taxes are always classified as non-current.

3.2. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.2.1 Equity accounting of UCB

The Company having significant influence over UCB, the latter is considered to be an associated company as
defined in IAS 28. Consequently, the investment in UCB is accounted for using the equity method.

The equity method is a method of accounting whereby the investment in UCB is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Company’s share of the net assets of UCB.

Cost comprises either the acquisition price (the purchase price and any expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition), or the contribution value. Any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of UCB’s identifiable assets and liabilities (goodwill) is included in the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Company acquires an additional interest in UCB whereby UCB
continues to be an associate, the cost of acquiring the additional interest is added to the existing carrying
amount of the participating interest. The increase in the participating interest is split between goodwill and the
additional interest in the fair value of the net assets of UCB at the date of the increase of the participating
interest. The existing goodwill is not re-measured.
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A change in the Company’s share of the net assets of UCB occurs when there is a change in the percentage of the
participating interest of the Company in UCB (“change of type 1”), or, without a change in the percentage of the
participating interest of the Company in UCB, when there is a change in the net assets of UCB that is attributable
to Financiére de Tubize (“change of type 2”). The impact of a type 1 change is recorded in the statement of
changes in equity. The impact of a type 2 change is recorded as follows: the Company’s share of UCB’s profits or
losses is recognized in profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income; its share
of UCB’s other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income; and its share of other changes in the net assets of UCB is recognized
in the statement of changes in equity. The cumulative post acquisition movements adjust the carrying amount
of the participating interest. Distributions received from UCB reduce the carrying amount of the participating
interest.

After application of the equity method, whenever there is any objective indication that the participating interest
may be impaired, the Company performs an impairment test by comparing the carrying amount of the
participating interest (including goodwill which is not tested for impairment separately) with its recoverable
amount (the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell). If the recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss equal to the difference between both amounts is recorded as a loss in the
statement of profit or loss.

3.2.2. Bankborrowings

Bank borrowings are initially measured at the cash obtained, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

They are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method with gains and losses
recognized in profit or loss when the debt is derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

Bank borrowings, or part of it, are derecognized when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the borrowing contract is (partly) discharged by paying the bank.

Debt restructuring is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original debt and the recognition of a new debt,
only if the terms of the debt have substantially changed, which is the case if the net present value of the cash
flows under the new terms (including any fees and costs incurred) discounted at the original effective interest
rate is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original debt.
If the restructuring is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original debt, the difference between the
carrying amount of the original debt and the fair value of the new debt assumed, as well as any fees and costs
incurred, are recognized in profit or loss at the date of extinguishment. If the restructuring is not accounted for
as an extinguishment, the carrying value of the original debt, net of fees and costs incurred, is treated as the new
basis for amortized cost accounting, using the new effective interest rate; fees and costs incurred as part of the
restructuring are thus amortized over the remaining term of the restructured debt according to the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

3.2.3. Cash flow hedges
The Company uses interest rate swaps (including deferred start swaps) to hedge (part of) its exposure to cash
flow risks arising from variable rate bank borrowings. The Company documents, both at hedge inception and

on an on-going basis, that the interest rate swaps are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the
hedged bank borrowings.
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The interest rate swaps that have passed the effectiveness test and have been designated as hedging instrument,
are initially recorded at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss when
incurred. The interest rate swaps are subsequently re-measured at fair value. The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of the interest rate swaps is recognized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion, if any, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

A cash flow hedge relationship is discontinued prospectively if the hedge fails the effectiveness test, the hedging
instrument is sold or terminated, or management revokes the hedge designation. As from the date of
discontinuation of the hedge relationship, changes in fair value of the swap are recorded in profit or loss, and
the accumulated balance of the clean price at that date, is accounted for as follows: (i) the portions of the hedging
that correspond to cash flows that are no longer expected to occur (over-hedging) are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss of the period during which the discontinuation has occurred, and (ii) the remaining balance is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss over the remaining lifetime of the swap based on the time weighted
notional amounts.

The allocation of the clean price of the interest rate swaps between current and non-current is based on the
time weighted notional amounts. The interest accruals are classified as current.

Accrued interest payable and receivable on the same swap are offset in the statement of financial position. Such
offsetting equally applies to interest income and interest expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

3.2.4. Income taxes

Income tax expenses or credits comprise current and deferred income taxes. They are recognized in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case the
tax expenses or credits are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Current income taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted in Belgium at
the balance sheet date.

Deferred income taxes are calculated on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred income tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax
credits or carried forward tax losses can be used .

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred income taxes are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are only offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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3.2.5. Significant accounting policies UCB

Reference is also made to UCB’s summary of significant accounting policies; through the equity method of
accounting they do impact the Company’s financial position and results.

3.3. Judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the board of directors to make judgments,
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported assets and disclosures. Where applicable, such
judgments, estimates and assumptions are explained in the relevant notes.

3.4. Initial application of amended standards

During this accounting period, the Company applied all new or revised standards or interpretations as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB, to the extent that they are relevant to its activities and applicable
for the accounting period starting January 1, 2021. The Company has not applied anticipatively neither new
Standards nor Interpretations for which the mandatory applicable date is subsequent to December 31, 2021.

The following Standards, Interpretations and Amendments, as issued by the IASB or IFRIC, are in force since
this accounting period and are not applicable to the Company :

- Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement, IFRS 4 Insurance contracts and IFRS 16 Leases-
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2, effective 1 January 2021

- Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases - Covid-19 related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021, March 2021,
effective 1 April 2021

3.5. Impact of future application of issued new standards

New IFRS standards or interpretations that have been issued by the IASB or IFRIC but are not yet mandatorily
applicable in 2021 are discussed hereafter. If relevant, the Company will adopt these texts when they become
mandatory. Reference is also made to UCB’s note on the subject. Through the equity method of accounting, the
Company’s financial position and results will be impacted for its ownership interest in UCB. It relates to the
following texts:
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Texts not yet endorsed by EFRAG:

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current, effective 1 January 2023
- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure
of Accounting policies, effective 1 January 2023
- Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of
Accounting Estimates, effective 1 January 2023
- Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction, effective 1 January 2023
- Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance contracts: Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Information, effective 1 January 2023

4. Notes

4.1. Participating interest in UCB

4.1.1. Book value

Share of the net assets

of UCB Goodwill Total
€000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
At 1 January 2,618,686 | 2,543,799 207,439 | 207,439 | 2,826,125 2,7513,238
Distribution (86,458) (84,415) (86,458) (84,415)
Participation increase 12,423 - 12,841 - 25,1264 -
Share of the profit of UCB 382,627 263,742 - - 382,627 263,742
Share of other (90,335)
comprehensive income of
UCB (note 4.1.2.) 103,050 (90,335) - - 103,050
Share of other changes in net 3,999 (5,140) 3,999 (5,140)
assets of UCB[1] - -
Changes in the percentage of (2,773) (8,965) - - (2,773) (8,965)
participating interestas a
result of changes in the
number of own shares held
by UCB
At 31 December 3,031,554 | 2,618,686 220,280 | 207,439 | 3,251,834 2,826,125
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4.1.2. Share of other comprehensive income of UCB

2021 2020
€000 Gross Tax Net Gross Tax Net
Items that will not be reclassified to 35,201 | (3,901) 31,300 (9,326) | 528 | (8,798)
profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit
obligations 35,201 | (3,901) 31,300 (9,326) 528 (8,798)
Elements that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss 71,749 - 71,749 | (81,537) - | (81,537)

Translation adjustment 101,377 - 101,377 | (113,301) -1 (113,301)
Net result from available-for-sale 8,075 - 8,075 9,748 R 9,748
financial assets
Effective portion of cash flow hedges (37,703) - (37,703) 22,016 - 22,016
Share of other comprehensive income
of UCB 106,950 | (3,901) 103,049 (90,863) 528 | (90,335)
4.1.3. Fair value
31 December 2021 2020
Number of UCB shares 68,387,021 68,076,981
Share price UCB (€) 100,35 84.48
Fair value of the participating interest in UCB (€ 000) 6,862,638 5,751,143
Carrying value (€ 000) 3,251,834 2,826,125
Excess of fair value over carrying value 3,610,804 2,925,018
4.1.4. Concert
Number of voting rights % of voting rights
31 December 2021 2020 2021 2020
Financiere de Tubize 68,387,021 68,076,981 35.16 35.00
Total 68,387,021 68,076,981 35.16 35.00
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4.1.5. Summarized financial information about UCB

Summarized statement of financial position

€000 000

31 December 2021 2020
Non-current

assets 10,500 9,737
Current assets 3,711 3,582
Non-current liabilities (3,000) (3,233)
Current liabilities (2,825) (2,814)
Net assets 8,386 7,272
Non-controlling interests - 1
Net assets attributable to UCB shareholders 8,386 7,271

Summarized statement of comprehensive income
€000 000 2021 2020
Revenue 5,777 5,347
Profit from continuing operations 1,056 761
Profit from discontinued operations 3 -
Other comprehensive income 285 (250)
Comprehensive income 1,344 511
Reconciliation of summarized financial information to carrying value

€000 000

31 December 2021 2020
Net assets attributable to UCB shareholders 8,386 7,039
Interest of the Company 36,15% 36.01%
Company’s share of net assets of UCB 1 3,032 2,619
Goodwill on acquisition 220 207
Carrying value of participating interest in UCB 3,252 2,826

(1) Taking into account treasury shares held by UCB
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4.2. Financial instruments

4.2.1. Financial instruments by category

€000 Loans & Receivables Liabilities at Derivatives
amortised cost

31 December 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Prepayments 29 50 - - - -
Other receivables 1 - - - - -
Cash & cash equivalents 15,900 983 - - - -
Bank borrowings - -1 (20,041) (33,516) - -
Derivatives - - - - - (102)
Other creditors - - (897) (639) - -
Total 15,930 1,033 | (20,938) (34,155) - (102)

4.2.2. Risks related to financial instruments

The Company is exposed to cash flow risk resulting from floating rate bank borrowings. The Company made
use of interest rate swaps (including deferred start swaps) until May 2021 to protect itself against the risk of an
increase of interest rates.. The situation of the bank borrowings and their hedging as at 31 December 2021 is
reflected in the notes 4.2.6. and 4.2.7.

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk, in particular the risk of facing difficulties in meeting its obligations
under the bank borrowings. The contractual maturities of these borrowings are summarized in note 4.2.6. The
Company considers that the dividend flow from UCB and, to the extent necessary, new credit recourse will
ensure that today’s contractually scheduled reimbursements be met.

The Company is exposed to credit risk to the extent a bank-counterparty to cash at bank or to interest rate
swaps would not meet its obligations and the Company, as a result thereof, would incur a financial loss. The
bank-counterparties are Belgian banks with a rating of ‘upper medium grade’.

4.2.3. Fair value of financial instruments

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments:

€000 Level of the inputs in the Carrying values Fair values

31 December fair value hierarchy 2021 2020 2021 2020
Prepayments - 29 50 29 50
Other receivables 2 1 - 1 -
Cash and cash
equivalents - 15,900 983 15,900 983
Bank borrowings (20,041) (33,516) | (20,041) (33,516)
Derivatives 2 - (102) - (102)
Other creditors - (897) (639) (897) (639)

The fair value of prepayments, cash and cash equivalents, suppliers and other creditors approximates the
carrying amount because of the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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The fair value of floating rate bank borrowings approximates the carrying value because the floating rates

reflect the short-term market rates.

As at December 31st, 2021, all borrowings in place are floating rate borrowings.

The Company uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of its hedging interest rate swaps. These
techniques include present value models and incorporate observable inputs of level 2 in the fair value hierarchy,
such as interest rate curves and inputs concerning the spreads.

No transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy have occurred during the financial year 2021.

4.2.4. Prepayments

€000

31 December 2021 2020
Deferred charges

Insurance premium - 22
Insurance brokerage 2 1
Portal of the board of directors 19 19
Others 8 8
Total 29 50

4.2.5. Cash and cash equivalents

€000

31 December 2021 2020
Cash at bank 15,900 983
Total 15,900 983

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

4.2.6. Bank borrowings

Carrying values

€000 Non-current Current Total

31 December 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Floating rate borrowings - - (20,000) (33,500) | (20,000) (33,500)
Accrued interest - - (41 (16) (41) (16)
Total - -l (20,041)| (33,516)| (20,041) (33,516)

At31December 2021, the confirmed credit lines of € 350 million were utilized up to €20.0 million. The available
margin on confirmed credit lines amounted to €330.0 million at 31 December 2021.
Floating rate borrowings range between 1-month fixed advances and 12-month fixed advances.
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Change of outstanding debt throughout 2021

€000 Confirmed | Utilized Available
lines Floating | Fix [ Total

01/01/2021 Opening 402,000| (33,500) -1 (33,500) 368,500
15/02/2021  Reimbursement Term advance - 33,500 - 33,500 33,500
15/05/2021  Term advance -1 (34,000) -1 (34,000) (34,000)
17/05/2021 Reimbursement Term advance - 34,000 - 34,000 34,000
19/10/2021  Term advance -| (20,000) -1 (20,000) | (20,000)
06/11/2021 Contractual maturities (52,000) - - - (52,000)
31/12/2021 Closing 350,000 | (20,000) -1(20,000) 330,000

At the end of the credit facility fully repaid on May 17, 2021, the credit lines confirmed as of December 31, 2021
amounted to €350 million and were used up to €20.0 million. The available margin on confirmed lines
amounted to €330.0 million as of December 31, 2021.

Contractual maturities

€000 Confirmed lines Used
Floating Fix Total
31/08/2025 250.000 20.000 - 20.000
30/09/2025 100.000 - - -
350.000 20.000 - 20.000
Collateral

The borrowings are collateralized through a pledge on 732,667 UCB shares as at 31 December 2021. The
carrying value of these pledged shares amounts to € 18.7 million.

Covenants
The Company must comply with the following debt covenants:

—  Collateral for the bank borrowings must consist of a number of UCB shares, the total market value of which
must be at the minimum 150% of the outstanding debt, this ratio equals 367.62%.

—  Borrowings may not exceed 30% of the fair value of the investment in UCB; as at 31 December 2021, this
ratio amounted to 0.29%.

—  The solvency ratio (equity versus balance sheet total on a BE GAAP basis) must exceed 70%; as at 31
December 2021, this ratio equals 96.91%.
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Cash flow risk management

The majority of bank borrowings are structured in the form of roll-over loans with short-term, floating-rate
advances. The Company has used, until May 2021, interest rate swaps to hedge against the risk of an increase
in interest rates.

In September 2020, the Company concluded two new revolving loans of €250 million and €100 million
respectively with the aim of giving the company all the leeway it needs to act according to market
opportunities. These new loans replaced the previous loans, fully repaid in mid-May 2021 and maturing on
November 6, 2021. These two loans were concluded for a period of 5 years and are structured in the form of
aroll-over loan with short-term and floating-rate advances. As of December 31, 2021, these new credits were
used up to €20.0 million.

See footnote 4.2.7. for additional information regarding accounting for swaps.

Borrowing cost

€000 2021 2020
Interest expenses (165) (543)
Commitment fee (1.105) (366)
Net gains on derivatives (see 4.2.7.) 284 124
Other financial expenses (10) (189)
Total (996) (974)

Interest charges on bank loans fall from €543k in 2020 to €165k in 2021 taking into account the decrease in
average outstanding debt from €52.0 million in 2020 to €16.0 million in 2021 Thanks to the maintenance of
favorable market conditions and active management of bank debt, the average cost of debt is stable in 2021
and is around 1.01% (1.04% in 2020).

Reservation fees on the unused portion of confirmed credit lines amounted to €1,105k in 2021 (€366k in
2020). The reservation commission amounts to 0.30% as of December 31, 2021.
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4.2.7. Derivatives

IRS designated as

IRS not designated as

€000 hedging instrument hedging instrument LIRSS
31 December 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Notional amounts - 36,000 - - - 36,000
Full fair value - (102) - - - (102)
Non-current - - - - -
Current - (102) - - - (102)
Accrued interest - (25) - - - (25)
Payable - (25) - - - (25)
Receivable - - - - - -
Clean price - (77) - - - (77)
Clean price, prior year end (77) (321) - (67) (77) (321)
oy e e | o IR
Reported in profit or loss 284 124 - 67 284 124
1?2:110/ (11055(') during the 284 124 . 67 284 124
comprehensive income @o7)| 120 - | @ 120
o, o] 1o | ] e
I??filo/(li()SS( ) during the (120) i i i ) i

Swaps accounted for as hedging instruments - The Company held two interest rate swaps to (partly) hedge
its exposure to cash flow risks arising from variable rate bank borrowings. Both swaps were fully amortized in
mid-May 2021. Hedge accounting was applied. The change in the fair values of the swaps (€77Kk) is recorded in
other comprehensive income, except for the amounts of €164k corresponding to the ineffective part of the
hedge and €120k corresponding to a reclassification.

4.2.8. Other creditors

€000

2021 2020
31 December
Suppliers and invoices to receive (467) (149)
Non-collected dividends from prior years (430) (490)
Total (897) (639)

In 2016, the provision for non-collected dividends from prior years has been re-estimated on the basis of the
principles set out by the “Commission des Normes Comptables” in its advice 2016/12 related to prescribed
liabilities and on the basis of a legal analysis of the applicable prescription rules.
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4.3. Income taxes

4.3.1. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

€000 Total Recognized Unrecognized

31 December 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Derivatives - 26 - - - 26
Unused tax credits 36,825 36,246 - - 36,825 36,246
Deferred tax assets 36,825 36,272 - - 36,825 36,272

IAS 12 restricts the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the underlying deductible temporary differences can be utilized. It is ‘probable’ that
there will be sufficient taxable profit if a deferred tax asset can be offset against a deferred tax liability, which
will reverse in the same period as the asset, or in a period into which a loss arising from the asset may be carried
forward. The deferred tax asset arising from unused tax credits from tax exempt dividends is not recognized, as
there is no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilized by the Company. The tax credits do not have a fixed expiry date.

4.3.2. Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

€000 2021 2020
Profit before taxes 380,090 260,519
Theoretical income tax rate 25.00% 25.00%
Theoretical income tax (95,023) (65,130)
Reported income tax - -
Difference between theoretical and reported income tax (95,023) (65,130)
Dividends (21,615) (21,104)
Share of the profit of UCB 95,657 65,936
Tax exempt dividends* 20,267 20,267
Net profit on derivatives 71 31
Total effects of difference between theoretical and reported taks 95,023 65,130

*limited to the statutory profit of the Company
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4.4. General and administrative expenses

€000 2021 2020
Directors’ remuneration 395 384
Attendance fee 113 85
General manager remuneration 261 118
Statutory auditors’ fee 16 14
Service providers

— Bookkeeping 166 105
— Advise (legal, tax, social, financial, insurance) 287 260
— Notary public - 3
— Paying agent - 12
— Contributions - -
— Euronext 61 51
— Euroclear 15 15
— FSMA 63 58
—  Others 38 3
— Services - -
— Financial publicity 39 55
— Insurance 40 38
— Board portal 2 18
— Training - -
— Miscellaneous (post, bank, office supplies, travel, ...) 38 30
Gift - 1,000
Total 1,534 2,249

4.5. Earnings per share

As there are no instruments with potential dilutive effect, basic and dilutive earnings per share are the same.
They are calculated by dividing the profit by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

Throughout the financial year 2021, the number of subscribed shares still amounts to 44,512,598.

4.6. Dividends

In respect of the accounting year 2021, a proposal to pay a gross dividend of € 0.75 per share, or a total amount
of € 33.3 million, will be submitted for approval to the shareholders meeting of 29 April 2022. In accordance

with IAS 10, the proposed dividend has not been recognized as a liability at year-end.

4.7 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all

other equity reserves disclosed in the statement of changes in equity.
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The issued share capital of the Company amounts to € 235 million and is fully paid up. The share premium
reserve amounts to 1,225k. The share capital at 31 December 2021 is represented by 44,512,598 shares, and is
unaltered since 31 December 2019. The number of registered shares was 33,327,927 at 31 December 2021; the
remainder of the shares are de-materialized. The holders of the shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared. They have one vote per share at the shareholders meeting. Included in the total number of shares are
some shares that represent a reserve for exchanging against attribution rights, both issued or in reserve for
issue; these reserve shares do not give right to dividend or voting.

The Company manages its capital structure in light of its participating interest in UCB and its indebtedness. The
Company’s capital management aims to ensure that it meets all financial covenants. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call its borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants during the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

See also note 4.2.6. for more information on the nature and the calculation of the covenants.

4.8. Related parties’ transactions

Shareholders

On the basis of the transparency and Directors’ declarations notified to the Company, the shareholders structure
at 31 December 2020 can be summarized as follows:

In concert Outside concert Total

Number % Number % Number %
FE] SRL 8,525,014 | 19.15% 1,988,800 447%| 10,513,814 23.62%
Daniel Janssen 5,881,677 | 13.21% - - 5,881,677 13.21%
Altai Invest SA 4,969,795 | 11.16% 26,468 0.06% 4,996,263 11.22%
Barnfin SA 3,903,835 8.77% - - 3,903,835 8.77%
Jean van Rijckevorsel 11,744| 0.03% - - 11,744 0.03%
CT(‘,’;‘C’L ;’;’“'"g rights held by the | 5 595 065| 52.33% | 2,015,268 4.53% | 25,307,333 56.85%
Other shareholders - -1 19,205,265| 43.15% | 19,205,265 43.15%
Total voting rights 23,292,065 | 52.33% | 21,220,533 | 47.67% | 44,512,598 | 100.00%

Altai Invest is controlled by Evelyn du Monceau. Barnfin is controlled by Bridget van Rijckevorsel.

The reference shareholders act in concert. The terms of the concert are laid down in a shareholders agreement.
The key elements of this agreement can be summarized as follows:

—  The objective of the concert is to ensure, through Financiere de Tubize, the stability of the shareholder
structure of UCB in view of the long-term industrial development of the latter. In this perspective, it aims
at preserving the predominance of the family shareholder structure of Financiere de Tubize.

—  The parties to the concert consult with each other about the decisions to be taken at the general meeting
of Financiére de Tubize, and try, to the extent possible, to reach a consensus. They ensure that they are
properly represented at the board of directors of Financiere de Tubize. Within this board and through their
representatives at the board of directors of UCB, they consult with each other about the significant strategic
decisions concerning UCB, and try, to the extent possible, to reach a consensus.

—  The parties inform each other prior to any project of significant acquisition or sale of shares of Financiere
de Tubize; pre-emption rights and tag along are also in place within the family.
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The reference shareholders and the persons closely related to them have no direct or indirect relationships with
the Company other than those resulting from their capacity as shareholder or, when applicable, their
representation in the board of directors.

Directors

The short-term benefits attributed to the directors (11 directors and the general manager) amount to € 769k
in total for the financial year 2021. The directors did not benefit from any other type of remuneration during
the year 2021.

UCB

In 2021, the Company has received a dividend from UCB in relation to accounting year 2020 for a total amount
of € 86,5 million. There have been no other transactions with UCB during the year 2021.

Auditor

In 2021, the auditor fees amount to € 13k.
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[Free translation]

STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE GENERAL MEETING OF
FINANCIERE DE TUBIZE SA FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

In the context of the statutory awdit of the EU-IFRS financial statements of FINAMNCIERE DE
TUBIZE 54 {*the Company'}, we hereby present our statutory auditor’s report. It inchudes our
report of the EU-IFRS financial statements and the other legal and regulatory requirements.
This report is an integrated whole and is indivisible.

‘We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting of 30 April 2021,
following the proposal formulated by the board of directors. Duwr statutory auditor’s mandates
expires on the date of the General Meeting deliberating on the financial statements closed on
31 December 2023. We have performed the statutory awdit of the EU-IFRS financial
statements of the company for the first year.

REPORT OM THE EU-IFRS FIMANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Ungqualified opinion

e ——

‘We have performed the statutory audit of
the EU-IFRS financial statements, which
comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of
cash fiows for the year then ended, and
notes to the EU-IFRS financial statements,
including a summary of significant
accounting poticies and other explanatory
information, and which is characterized by
a statement of financial position total of
3267764 thousand EUR and for which
income statement and other
comprehensive income shows a profit for
the year of 380090 thowsand EUR.

In our opinion, the EU-IFRS financial
statements give a true and fair view of the
Company's net equity and financial
position as at 31 December 2021, as well

as of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by
the European Umion and with the legal and
regulatory reguirements applicable in
Belgium.

Basis for ungualified opinion
»-—

We conducted our audit in accordance
with Intermmational Standards on Auditing
{154} as applicable in Belgium. Our
responsibifities under those standards are
further described in the 'Statutory auditor's
responsibilities for the awdit of the EU-IFRS
financial statements’ section in this report.
We have complied with all the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to the
audit of EU-IFRS financial statements in
Belgium, including those concerning

ndependence.

We have obtained from the administrative
body and company officials the
explanations and information necessary for
performing our audit.

We believe that the audit evidence we
have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.,
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Key audit matters
.—

Key awdic matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment, were of most
significance im our audit of the EU-IFRS
financial statements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the
context of our awdit of the EU-IFRS
financial statements as a whole, and n
forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate ocpinion on these
Mmatiers.

WALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Reference to the annexes to the EU-IFRS
financial statements: 3.2.1, 4.1

Description of the key oudit matter

Az of December 31, 2021, the stake held in
the listed company UCE S5A (151M:
BEDDO3T3I9530) recognized in the balance
sheet of the EU-IFRS financial statements
through the application of the equity
method amounts to 3.251.834 thousand
euros and represents 99.51% of the total
balance sheet.

‘We consider that the audit of this
participating interest constitutes the key
audit matter of the company because of
the relative importance of this position in
the total balance sheet as well as the
thearetical risk involved in the valuation of
the participating interest held.

How the key audit matter was oddressed
during the audit

Owr awdit work mainly consisted of the
following procedures:

- We validated the ownership of the
stake held by the audited
Company;

- ‘We checked whether the value
retained for the participating
interest held was not lower than
its recoverable value (the higher
value of the value in use and the

fair value less the costs to sell)
with regard to the information
availlable as to its market valus.

Responsibilities of the admintstrative
body for the drafting of the EU-IFRS
fimancial statements
-—
The administrative body is responsible for
the preparation of EL-IFRS financial
statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Unson and with
the legal and regulatory provisions
applicable in Belgium, and for such
wnternal control as the administrative body
deternmines iz necessary to enable the
preparation of EU-IFRS financial
statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or
BIYOT.

In preparing the EU-IFRS financial
statements, the administrative body is
responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concerm,
disclosing, as applicabie, matters related
to going concemn and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the
administrative body either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease
pperations, or has no realistic altermative
but to do so.

Statutory auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the EU-IFRS fincncral
statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the EU-IFRS
fimancial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether dus
to fraud or error, and to issue a statutory
auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but it is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with

FURASCIERE DE TUSILE 54
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1545 will always detect a material
mizstatement when it exists.
Mizstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are constdered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these EU-IFRS financial
statements.

‘When executing our audit, we respect the
‘egal, regulatory and normative framework
applicable for the awdit of the EU-IFRS
financial statements in Belgium. However,
a statutory audit does not guarantee the
future viability of the Compamy, neither
the efficiency and effectiveness of the
management of the Company by the
administrative body. Dur responsibilities
regarding the continuity assumption
applied by the administrative body are
described below.

As part of an audit in accordance with
1545, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstaterment of the EU-IFRS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or
eror, design.and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that 15
sufficient and approgriate to provide a
basiz for our epinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may
ivolve collusion, forgery, mtentional
omissions, misrepreseniations, or the
overmide of intermal control;

« [Dbtain an understanding of internal
contral relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an
optmion on the effectivensss of the
Company’s intemnal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting pobicies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the
administrative body;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the
administrative body's use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continwe as a going concern. If
we conctude that 3 material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw
attention in our statutory awditor's
report to the related disclosures in the
EU-IFR5S financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadeguate, to modify
our opinion. Ouwr conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obiained up to
the date of our statutory auditor's
repoit. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to
cease o continue as a going concern;

= Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the EU-IFRS
financial statements and whether the
EU-IFRS financial statements represant
the underlying transactions and events
in & manner that achieves fair
presentation;

+ Obtain sufficient appropriste audit
evidence regarding the financial
information or business activities of the
Company to express an opinion on the
EU-IFRS financial statements. We are
responsible for the management, the
suparvision and the performance of the
audit. We assume full responsibility for
the auditor's opinion.

We communicate with the administrative
body regarding, among other matters, the
planned soope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
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significant deficiencies in internal control
identified during the audit.

‘We also provide the administrative body
with a statement that we respected the
relevant ethical requirements relating to
independence, and we communicate with
them about all relationships and other
1ssues which may influence our
independence, and, if applicabls, about
the related measures to guarantee our

ndependence.

From the matters communicated with the
administrative body, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the EU-IFRS financial
statements of the current year, and are
therefore the key audit matiers. We
describe these matters in our statutory
audrtor's report, unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the
Mmatier.

OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
RECHUIREMENTS

Responsibilities of the odministrative

body

——
The administrative body is responsible for
the preparation and the contents of the

management report on the ELU-IFRS
financial statements.

Responsibilities of the statutory aouditor
.—

In the context of our mission and in
accordance with the Belgian standard
[wersion revised 2020) which is
complementary to the Intemational
Standards on Auditing (i%4) as applicable in
Belgium, it is our responsibility to verify,
in all material aspects, the management
report on the EU-IFRS financial
statements, as well as to report on this
element.

Aspects relating to the mamagement
report on the EU-IFRS financial
staotements

In cur opinion, after having performed
specific procedures in relation to the
management report, this report is
consistent with the EU-IFRS financial
statements for the same financial year,
and it i5s prepared in accordance with
article 3:32 of the Code of companies and
AssoCiations.

In the context of our audit of the EU-IFRS
financial statements, we are also
responsible for considering, in particular
bazed on the knowledge we have obtained
during the audit, whether the
management report on the EU-IFRS
financial statements contains any material
misstatements, i.e. amy information which
s inadequately disclosed or otherwise
misieading. Based on the procedures we
have perfarmed, there are no material
misstatements we have to report to you.

Statement concerning independence

-—

« Dur audit firm and our network did net
provide services which are incompatible
with the statutory audit of the EU-IFRS
financial statements and cur asdit firm
remained independent of the Company
during the terms of our mandate.

European Single Electronic Format
{ESEF)

-—

In accordance with the standard on
auditing the conformity of financial
statements with the European Single
Electronic Format (hereinafter "ESEF™),
we also audited the conformity of the ESEF
format with the regulatory techmical
standards established by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 204157815 of 17
December 2018 (hereinafter: “Delegated
Regulation™).

FINASCIERE DE TUSIIE 54

Shalutrey aaditor's neport Lo S gl sty of -t comseny 0s dhe BLUPRS fnascial sshereis b e par e 5 Decerer 3101



IBDO

The managing body is responsible for
preparing, in accordance with ESEF
requirements, the financial statements in
the form of an electronic file in ESEF
format (hereinafter “digital financial
statements”) included in the annual
financial report.

It iz our responsibitity to obtain sufficient
and appropriate supporting information to
conclude that the format of the digital
financial statemants complies in all
material aspects with the ESEF
requirements under the Delegated
Regulation.

Bazed on our work, we believe that the
format of the digital financial statements
included in the annual financial report of
Financiere de Tubize SA as at 31 December
2021 complies in all material aspects with
the ESEF reguirements under the
Delegated Regulation.

Other statements
e A

» This report is in compliance with the
comtents of our additional report to the
Board of Directors as referred to in

article 11 of regulation (EU) Mo
BIT/I0M4.

Brussels, 25 February 2022

BDO Reviseurs d'Entreprises SEL
Statutary auditor

Represented by Christophe COLSON
Auditor
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